
 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
January 19, 2023 

Page 1 of 3 

   

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS BUSINESS MEETING 

January 19, 2023 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Call to Order: Chairperson Coless called the hybrid live/virtual meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.  

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Roll Call:   

a. The following members were in attendance: Chairperson Coless, Vice-Chair Darby, and 

Supervisors Sorgini, MacFarland and Neights.  

b. Also in attendance were: E.J. Mentry, Township Manager; Mike Mrozinski, Community 

Development Director; Tim Woodrow, Township Engineer; Casey Moore, Traffic Engineer, Joe 

Chillano, Public Works Director, Michael Jackson, Chief of Police, and Ash Jeyapratap, Student 

Representative. 

 

Chairman’s Comments  

a. Chair Coless announced that an executive session was held on January 19, 2023 to discuss legal 

and personnel matters. 

 

1) Presentations 

A. Student representative report - Ash Jeyapratap 

 

2) Consent Agenda  

A. MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to approve the consent agenda items 2(a), 2(b), 

and 2(c), including moving the meeting minutes of December 15, 2022 and January 3, 2023, into 

the record; authorizing payment of bills totaling $861,278.36; approving escrow release #2 for 

Eagleville Hospital, Phase 2 in the amount of $479,314.17; and approving the final escrow 

release for 805 N. Park Avenue/Erb in the amount of $15,000.00. Vice-Chair Darby seconded 

the motion.   

i. There was no public comment. 

ii. The motion passed 5-0. 

 

3) Old Business 

A. Discussion of Audubon Square V Land Development Plan, Phase 2, 717 S. Trooper Road 

a. Mr. Mrozinski introduced representatives from Audubon Land Development regarding a 

revision of a previously approved plan.  Bernadette Kearney, Brad Macy and Debbie 

Rosner outlined the revision. The plan includes retail buildings, restaurants, and updated 

roadways. 

b. The amended design expands one of the buildings to a 144,000 self-storage facility; 

expands the retail space; and adds buildings for restaurant and retail space. 

c. Significant discussion ensued regarding the extension of Norris Hall Lane. 

d. Brad Macy confirmed that the developer would comply with all comments in the 

Township Engineer’s and Traffic Engineer’s review letters.  

e. The Board will consider approval of the plan at the February 2, 2023 meeting.  

B. Discussion of Brightview Landscaping Land Development Plan, Phase 1, 400 N. Park Avenue 

a. Mr. Mrozinski introduced Len Bradley who provided details on the project. Brightview is 

proposing the construction of ground-mounted solar panels for charging a new electric 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
January 19, 2023 

Page 2 of 3 

   

fleet. The plan also proposes modernization of existing structures and the stormwater 

management facilities. The applicant has been before the Zoning Hearing Board and 

received the necessary zoning relief. 

b. The Board will consider approval of the plan at the February 2, 2023 meeting. 

 

C. Consideration of a Resolution establishing roles, responsibilities, and general code of conduct for 

the Board of Supervisors 

a. This matter was tabled for a meeting in the future. 

 

D. Consideration of appointment to Township boards/commissions/councils 

a. This matter was tabled for a meeting in the future. 

 

4) New Business 

A. Discussion of request for waiver of Subdivision and Land Development, Select Pizza Grill, 711 

S. Trooper Road 

a. Mr. Mrozinski explained that construction of a new outdoor dining space at the building 

in the Audubon Square Shopping Center is proposed. The proposal involves minor 

sitework such as altering some parking spaces. Debbie Rosner with Bursich Associates 

represented Select Pizza Grill. 

b. The Board will consider approval of the request at the February 2, 2023 meeting. 

 

B. Consideration of Resolution 2023-09 amending Providence Greene Homeowners’ Association 

Declaration 

a. This matter was tabled for a future meeting. 

 

C. Authorization to sell vehicles and equipment at auction. 

a. MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to authorize the sale of various vehicles 

and equipment at a public auction. Supervisor Sorgini seconded the motion.  

b. There was no public comment. 

c. The motion passed 5-0. 

  

D. Consideration of Resolution 2023-10 designating FEMA agent 

a. MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to approve Resolution 2023-10 

designating the Township Manager as the authorized agent to sign all required forms 

under the FEMA buyout program resulting from Hurricane Ida. Vice-Chair Darby 

seconded the motion.  

b. There was no public comment. 

c. The motion passed 5-0. 

 

E. Discussion of Vietnam Veterans Memorial replica collaboration with Upper Providence 

Township  

a. Mr. Mentry discussed the Vietnam Veterans Memorial replica collaboration with Upper 

Providence. The “Wall that Heals” travels around the country and has selected Upper 

Providence Township to host the exhibit from October 26-29, 2023. The location has yet 

to be determined. Mr. Mentry explained that this is a significant undertaking and Lower 

Providence Township, led by Park and Recreation Director Jane Delaney, has offered to 

assist and partner with Upper Providence. A significant number of volunteers will be 

needed to successfully pull off the event. Mr. Mentry will report back to the Board and 

public at a future meeting once more information is available. 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
January 19, 2023 

Page 3 of 3 

   

 

F. General Discussion of Board of Supervisors 2023 Strategy and Goals 

a. Chair Coless discussed the Board’s strategic/action planning to include a portion of the 

goals, such as the Planning Commission and their role in the township. The Board 

discussed getting the Planning Commission more involved in a proactive way in the 

implementation of the Comprehensive Plan once it’s adopted. 

 

5) Announcements/Meetings 

A. Environmental Advisory Council – January 23 at 7:00p.m. 

B. Planning Commission – January 25 at 7:00p.m. 

a. Comprehensive Plan Public Hearing 

C. Zoning Hearing Board – January 26 at 7:00p.m. – Cancelled. 

 

6) Comments and Other Business 

A. Chair Coless announced that the Montgomery County Senior Games are being held the first 

week of May. Volunteers are needed to help with the different events that are held across the 

county. 

B. Supervisor Sorgini noted that the Sewer Authority held its reorganization meeting and is moving 

forward with 2023 projects. He noted that the library will be holding some Children’s Programs 

in the evening for the first time. He encouraged residents to sign up for the library’s newsletter 

and to look for upcoming details on the spring fundraiser. 

C. Supervisor McFarland announced the Business Development meeting starting up Friday, January 

20 at 9:30am. 

 

7) Courtesy of the Floor 

A. Peter Tyler, Township resident, asked the Board to look into traffic and speeding issues on E. 

Mount Kirk Ave. and to consider installing a stop sign at the intersection with Providence Road.  

 

8) Adjournment 

A. Chair Coless announced that the Board would be convening in Executive Session at the 

conclusion of the meeting to discuss personnel matters. 

B. MOTION:  Supervisor Darby made a motion to adjourn. Supervisor Neights seconded the 

motion. The motion passed 5-0. The meeting adjourned at 9:13 p.m. 

 

 

Next Business Meetings:  February 2, 2023 

    February 16, 2023 

 

 

    















             LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
 

100                  100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

Police:  610-539-5900   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
INTER-OFFICE MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:   Members of the Board of Supervisors;  E.J. Mentry, Township Manager  
      
FROM:  Mike Mrozinski, Director of Community Development 
 
DATE:  January 26, 2022 
 
RE:  Adoption of Comprehensive Plan Update   
              

For your consideration is the adoption of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan Update. Pursuant to the 

Pennsylvania Municipalities Code, the governing body must hold at least one public meeting (hearing) 

before voting on adoption.  This hearing is scheduled for February 2, 2023. The purpose of this hearing is 

to formally gather public comment and is similar to what occurred at the Township Planning Commission 

meeting on January 25.  The Commission did unanimously recommend forwarding the plan to you after 

the conclusion of the hearing. 

 

The draft plan has been sent to our adjacent municipalities and Methacton School District. No comments 

have been received during that forty-five day review period. Similarly, the Township has received very 

limited comment form others. Notably, new Planning Commission member Samantha Grant did prepare a 

list of reactions and suggestions which were received at the Planning Commission meeting. A copy of this 

list is attached. Solicitor Lauren Gallagher reviewed the list and advises that none are substantive enough 

to warrant postponement of the hearing on February 2, noting that the plan can be amended after 

adoption. Today, the Township also received comments from Mark Cassel at SEPTA. These comments 

are attached.  

 

It is recommended that the Board take public comment at the hearing on February 2, and unless major 

changes are suggested at that time, anticipate voting on adoption on February 16. The adoption of the plan 

will kick us into action on ordinance revision and grant writing. Consistently, I have heard that 

stakeholders want this plan to lead to implementation of our shared vision. Looking forward to getting 

started.  



From: Lauren Gallagher
To: E.J. Mentry; Michael W. Mrozinski
Cc: Barbara Merlie
Subject: Comp Plan
Date: Thursday, January 26, 2023 11:24:55 AM
Attachments: image002.png

image003.png
image004.png

E.J. & Mike,
 
As discussed last night, we have taken a look at the list of proposed changes from the Planning Commission
from last night.  The re-advertising requirements for the Comp Plan mirror those from the MPC generally. 
None of the proposed changes appear to be so significant as to be substantial in relation to the plan as a
whole or to constitute “a significant disruption of the continuity of the proposed legislation or some
appreciable change in the overall policy of the bill.”
 
Mostly the suggestions seem to be related to minor changes in formatting or expanding on language for
purposes of clarification. Given the standards in the applicable caselaw, re-advertisement would require a
wholesale change in the intent of the document – none of these appear to do so.  
 
So, the Board can adopt some or all of the referenced changes without having to re-advertise.  Any questions,
please let us know.  Thanks!
 
 

 

Lauren A. Gallagher, Esquire  | Rudolph Clarke, LLC
Phone: 215.633.1890 |  Fax: 215.633.1830
www.rudolphclarke.com | E-mail: lgallagher@rudolphclarke.com
 
Bucks County Office: Seven Neshaminy Interplex | Suite 200 | Trevose, PA 19053
Montgomery County Office: 350 Sentry Parkway East | Building 630, Suite 110-A I Blue Bell, PA 19422
Delaware County Office:  10 Beatty Road | Suite 102 | Media, PA 19063 (by Appointment only)
Chester County Office: 101 Lindenwood Drive | Suite 225 | Malvern, PA 19355  (by Appointment only)
Burlington County Office: 10000 Lincoln Drive East | 1 Greentree Center | Suite 201 | Marlton, NJ 08053  (by
Appointment only)

THIS ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION IS PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL.  IMPORTANT NOTICE TO EMAIL RECIPIENTS: DO
NOT read, copy, or disseminate this communication unless you are the intended recipient.  Anyone who receives this email by error
should treat it as confidential and is asked to delete the message, and immediately call Rudolph Clarke, LLC at 215.633.1890 or reply by
email: lgallagher@rudolphclarke.com or by fax 215.633.1830.  This email transmission may not be secure and may be illegally
intercepted. Do not forward or disseminate this email to any third party. Unauthorized interception of this email is a violation of federal
law.  Any reliance on the information contained in this correspondence by someone who has not entered into a fee agreement with
Rudolph Clarke, LLC is taken at the reader’s own risk.
 

mailto:LGallagher@rudolphclarke.com
mailto:EMentry@lowerprovidence.org
mailto:mmrozinski@lowerprovidence.org
mailto:BMerlie@rudolphclarke.com
https://url.emailprotection.link/?bKEKnlSpDMYEAZq2w5XjWl0D5R1mkFApjascGAZMguy1GJEDgm_mR-iZaqj4qehfL7Q-IQuQ9YaXnen3KSjRMchXDfWf9qY7PtYzM-yYgvdRLK16piFAnWAXsDPMl6ycQ
https://url.emailprotection.link/?bZzrGmxcAgjFQ3JNg4A5wP3CjwVBcoM5wm_a_0SkMk2gFLUjGkNWkU6gkXnA0FJJBbZhLa7y8yS-WQkRPxlS7jY5fROzhJA-dvEBB9wflFjHMcBjz4Onz-Zj827ygKAvH
https://url.emailprotection.link/?bJFZNNk45Gb2LCuon5HjdYKGiivoK9bcNUd5gmbRR-2R3WUV9Yl1nxRHYorcypFghPN1OeZFj-b-0wEQt3eT4P5Sm_xgTrpiJrZELvKrhkkr2OXnZpOmFBEScw5uSDgkxs2Vq6XsZNgOb3H-wVa1TLaf3kjF29E7ML33f2CflPvI~
https://url.emailprotection.link/?bXTxmixQFOg4owbG1w9bH6zT02B-o6MoMqajdGy9X_q8kZ_kYZLDmPnz00O2CvvxYcZ5TjaxEsmH4bJnaAsiY6oY5QcBMcmFXWdvKZKSkbNojunUG3ibK-xFph47FGDnf
https://url.emailprotection.link/?b4gz7FrMDpMaFc5ySVs02qbYO2BxbcH5dll4QoaRIwa4eDQvTX0QdYofJ4JDslf2X55s9FiBWQcOiPRfav5dcs7oQ4m6Avb16iQ219-HfVb7k7K1omN2RPc0Kx_bflkD0
mailto:lgallagher@rudolphclarke.com
mailto:lgallagher@rudolphclarke.com









From: Mark Cassel
To: E.J. Mentry
Cc: Jarrell, Eric; Harley Cooper; Maureen Lichtner; Taron Cain; Ryan Judge; Jennifer Dougherty; Michael W.

Mrozinski; Daniel Nemiroff
Subject: Lower Providence Comprehensive Plan update
Date: Thursday, January 26, 2023 9:06:04 AM
Attachments: image001.png

SEPTA Bus Stop Design Resources.pdf

Good morning,
 
I apologize for not getting these comments about the draft Comprehensive Plan submitted to you
prior to the Planning Commission meeting last night. Here are some comments from SEPTA Service
Planning on the relevant sections of the action plan on page 106: I hope that you find these to be
useful as the plan moves to the Board of Supervisors for adoption.
 
23 Collaborate with SEPTA and property owners to improve convenience and security for transit
riders
 
23a Improve pedestrian connectivity to bus $top locations with sidewalks, walking paths, and
crosswalks.

Agreed. One of the challenges that SEPTA customers face is that the owners of the roadway
and the adjacent properties are the ones that control the facilities that connect those
properties to the appropriate bus stop locations. There are opportunities with the Township’s
subdivision and land development approvals to address conditions. Over time it is hoped that
contiguous pedestrian facilities are created.
 

23b Provide shelters and amenities (e.g. benches, curbing, waste receptacles, lighting) for high
ridership boarding locations following DVRPC and SEPTA guidelines

SEPTA is very supportive of local initiatives on this front. An example of where developer
collaboration has occurred in the Township is with Audubon Land Development on
Shannondell Boulevard. The company identified less than ideal conditions and decided to
proactively address them in conjunction with SEPTA staff input. This is what led to the
installation of loading pads and shelters. Because of the limited capital and maintenance
resources of the Authority, we rely on third parties to initiate shelters and other supportive
amenities.
I am attaching a one-page reference guide to the relevant information that staff and the
Planning Commission can use to achieve these ends.
 

23c Support the creation or relocation of bus stops to better serve the municipal campus and
Eagleville Park.

One of the challenges is that the Route 93 deviation to the Montgomery County Correctional
Facility is right across from the municipal campus. Particularly for trips from Norristown
Transportation Center to Pottstown, the bus must be in the left turn lane and cannot stop
close to the intersection on the westbound side of Ridge Pike. The lack of sidewalks and
access management challenges also affect this. Our Bus Operations staff will need to work
with Service Planning on any decisions related to bus stop locations to address operational
and passenger safety.

mailto:MCassel@septa.org
mailto:EMentry@lowerprovidence.org
mailto:EJARRELL@montcopa.org
mailto:HCooper@septa.org
mailto:MLichtner@septa.org
mailto:TCain@septa.org
mailto:RJudge@septa.org
mailto:JDougherty@septa.org
mailto:mmrozinski@lowerprovidence.org
mailto:mmrozinski@lowerprovidence.org
mailto:DNemiroff@septa.org
https://url.emailprotection.link/?beswdlny1kOweTsimEaMfQ4BhissWDmx4bxIfMcDow0wCy9O_Pndc7t2JSYOD8OccB53eGeJ3c-ctWUBqBcVs15zeRoGJoiH3Fj3mrZSByT4JCeUmw83agNAimEFCigtaqk_s2mcFgPPVV2vWSPzmV9XMz95Op3NJ_qhZmD-Gwqk~
https://url.emailprotection.link/?bOccmWjbeHiNVe5pnBCzKqkWnzjSnN3q4q8bQpltC85jGUGdM54OwtGiCO6oTj8lii71AGBMopCcrw6GLZkDKCEZWv6i4fDDROSaxMyRZ703RxAvmUS4aQa8muKYF_UER




 
 


BUS STOP DESIGN RESOURCES 
 
SEPTA TRANSIT SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
Part of a comprehensive program to deliver a seamless, lifestyle transit network, this supports efforts to implement 
the Strategic Plan, SEPTA Forward, and aligns with the Authority’s vision of transit at the core of our region.  
https://planning.septa.org/projects/transit-supportive-communities/ 
 
SEPTA BUS STOP DESIGN GUIDELINES 
The purpose of this report is to provide municipalities in the SEPTA service area, local developers, and other 
local partners a consistent set of guidelines for designing surface transit stops. 
https://planning.septa.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/SEPTA-Bus-Stop-Design-Guidelines-2019.pdf 
 
SEPTA BETTER BUS STOP REVIEW CHECKLIST 
This checklist is designed to ensure that quality transit access is a part of a successful development. 
https://planning.septa.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/SEPTA-Bus-Stop-Review-Checklist_fillable.pdf 
 
BUILDING BETTER BUS STOPS RESOURCE GUIDE  
Pennsylvania Public Transportation Association (PPTA)/PennDOT 
Includes model Subdivision & Land Development (SALDO) and Zoning ordinance language addressing bus stops. 
At least one municipality in the region has incorporated language from this document in a SALDO update. 
http://ppta.net/pages/betterbusstops 
 
IMPROVING SAFETY FOR PEDESTRIANS AND BICYCLISTS ACCESSING TRANSIT 
Federal Highway Administration/Federal Transit Administration 
This guide provides agencies with a thorough look at pedestrian and bicyclist safety considerations in accessing 
and using transit. 
https://safety.fhwa.dot.gov/ped_bike/ped_transit/fhwasa21130_PedBike_Access_to_transit.pdf  
 
FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION ADA CIRCULAR  
Circular 4710.1, Section 3.1.3 on ADA Access 
SEPTA does not control rights-of-way off its own properties, but is asked to request improvements from those 
entities that do hold that control for new, altered, or relocated bus stops. 
Https://www.transit.dot.gov/sites/fta.dot.gov/files/docs/Final_FTA_ADA_Circular_C_4710.1.pdf 
 
U.S. ACCESS BOARD 
Section R308 on ADA design for bus stops 
https://www.access-board.gov/prowag/chapter-r3-technical-requirements  



https://planning.septa.org/projects/transit-supportive-communities/

https://planning.septa.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/SEPTA-Bus-Stop-Design-Guidelines-2019.pdf

https://planning.septa.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/SEPTA-Bus-Stop-Review-Checklist_fillable.pdf

http://ppta.net/pages/betterbusstops

https://safety.fhwa.dot.gov/ped_bike/ped_transit/fhwasa21130_PedBike_Access_to_transit.pdf

https://www.transit.dot.gov/sites/fta.dot.gov/files/docs/Final_FTA_ADA_Circular_C_4710.1.pdf

https://www.access-board.gov/prowag/chapter-r3-technical-requirements





 
24 Support other expansions improvements of transit service
 
24a Support rail service expansion including the King of Prussia Rail, Schuylkill Valley passenger rail

King of Prussia Rail is a SEPTA initiative. We currently anticipate, with the eventual opening of
the line, that bus service into King of Prussia will be oriented towards an end-of-line station
near the Valley Forge Casino. This includes the service from Phoenixville, through the
Township, that is shown in the Bus Revolution draft plan and that is currently operated as
Route 99.
 

24b Support improved bus service such as increased frequency and extended service hours
I would refer you to our Bus Revolution website for the most recent draft plan. We expect to
release an updated draft for additional comment in March and would welcome feedback
from the Township.

Currently we are showing the Ridge Pike service (current Route 93) as 60-minute
frequencies, with expected increases during peak periods, similarly to the current
schedule.
The Norristown to Audubon (current Route 131) and King of Prussia to Phoenixville, via
Audubon (part of Route 99) routes would be 30-minute frequencies.
Route 91, which is a limited-service (Saturday only) route to the SCI Phoenix facility,
has not been operating since the pandemic began and visiting restrictions were
instituted. The route has not been restored due to limited demand, other alternatives
to access the site by contracted operators and resource allocation. It is not anticipated
that it will be restored prior to the implementation of Bus Revolution changes and is
not included in the current draft plan.

 
24c Consider adopting a TOD (Transit-Oriented Development) Overlay for areas within walking
distance of frequent transit service

SEPTA supports development around transit corridors through its Transit Supportive
Community Development initiative. It is important to note that, under current conditions and
under the Bus Revolution draft plan, we do not have any routes in the Township that we
would consider to be frequent service (15 minutes between trips or less on weekdays
between 6:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m.). Further definition of what the Township would consider to
be frequent would be helpful.
 

I will be retiring from SEPTA at the end of the month. Harley Cooper, Senior Operations Planner
(copied), will be your primary Service Planning contact in the interim and can bring in other SEPTA
staff as required.
 
Sincerely,

Mark Cassel
Mark E. Cassel, AICP | Director, Service Planning (he/him)
 
Service Planning Department | Planning & Strategy Division
Southeastern Pennsylvania Transportation Authority (SEPTA)
1234 Market Street, 9th Floor

https://url.emailprotection.link/?bTXqDRHxg9W0MOwpXC7gKzCSCQRHKaAUes-JwVyjora13f1CHQ_DoJXd4IJY4k49oDbs4WKaqTmWTX8n6TSidN86B9_ZA-TQVruGvkB9f1MPgpTTiXNwnSn4XnMpIg-KO
https://url.emailprotection.link/?bQVYKrR5_T2-6Hu7bNK3E4eCFummlMyG76psN9vpawq1LsTWBx2ZVLRBir2SJ2yUJsaWb_nvhlI8ydSAo5BYtfbTNpATRrunc52SJrT5_8A9NUHNNGdl5Nzp2yAD-kADp
https://url.emailprotection.link/?bTUAAqBTG6GbhlrnSF9VbPkT5I7RkFVTrd6NX4BHtwp8xUR_HNcx-bWP_ULcZ3T0JfyAlbg-B5HF5UTCPl1ZyzzlYPtsBqrxIcJvXHXm64-WcX-KyidkoQNTA0vHtFtrO
https://url.emailprotection.link/?bLws6uTg4IXS2H5EcnFkiYK8wbSQK5psEHw6YDLvWkVhQF__KLgr8CEkroPAiLNOmgXtrwSV5mF-lIUlz_YcamTjNWiyWlRTGtq0sW9u1I8JmburawNbLD5hAjehxA4G-
https://url.emailprotection.link/?bfGiPoyaAYVtgf7Re63JD5IIQCpdzvPCtWBU2w_SnP8PVOe2r5kGr4BK8Hd0QNnuRXTOVXHezU16pgGtJ5uvxvnbPiLm8ySHnYVCMwlcnKEz1kLKjCOfCrBL0oxSZt4ZM
https://url.emailprotection.link/?bfGiPoyaAYVtgf7Re63JD5IIQCpdzvPCtWBU2w_SnP8PVOe2r5kGr4BK8Hd0QNnuRXTOVXHezU16pgGtJ5uvxvnbPiLm8ySHnYVCMwlcnKEz1kLKjCOfCrBL0oxSZt4ZM


Philadelphia, PA 19107-3780
 
mcassel@septa.org | www.septa.org | planning.septa.org 
215-580-7238
 
SEPTA is more than transit; it is the way we connect to each other.

 
Note: I am retiring from SEPTA, effective COB January 31, 2023, and moving into private consulting.
If you would like to reach out to me after that date, please use mcassel29@gmail.com
For continuity of SEPTA business, please reach out after that date to one or more of the Senior
Operations Planners:
Harley Cooper hcooper@septa.org
Brandon Miller bmiller@septa.org
Steve LaBedz slabedz@septa.org
 

mailto:mcassel@septa.org
https://url.emailprotection.link/?bXHXYyoC_XKLRfV40MnK43M4dcUpNrUs7Z81OBJRUDkIAIA9BT68LPYwtG8GLcFjP4pPT615jC8vidoRhdiWkSQ~~
https://url.emailprotection.link/?bmkklhvSKG8k33UttQuXTTuUPRFbnhUPOE_Bsjt6_4Zy-nXst4-kcHSEtuRYM_dW2LavjbVxVomsj0KEAi7kL-C7NR5vkTrd7ITvfB4gj0-rCM_dE6Qw9OSegyXihu7Zd
tel:215-580-7238
mailto:mcassel29@gmail.com
mailto:hcooper@septa.org
mailto:bmiller@septa.org
mailto:slabedz@septa.org


 

{01567745;V3}1 
 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

RESOLUTION No. 2023-09 

 
WHEREAS, Providence Greene Home Owners’ Association (hereinafter referred to as 

“Association”) has submitted a request to amend the Declaration of Covenants, Restrictions, 

Easements, Charges and Liens dated April 15, 1994 for a development located within Lower 

Providence Township (hereinafter referred to as the “Township”) known as Providence Greene; 

and 

WHEREAS, The Cutler Group, Inc. ("Developer'') was the owner of the real property 

located in the Township of Lower Providence, County of Montgomery, Commonwealth of 

Pennsylvania, upon which real property Developer constructed a residential community 

consisting of 180 townhouse dwelling units and 5 single family detached dwelling units, together 

with Common Open Space and facilities for the benefit of such community; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer created the Association with certain rights, obligations and 

limitations on both the Association and owners of real property located therein pursuant to a 

Declaration of Covenants, Restrictions, Easements, Charges and Liens dated April 15, 1994 and 

filed in the Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds Book 5076, Page 762, et. seq. (hereinafter 

referred to as the "Original Declaration"); and 

WHEREAS, in 2005, the Association recorded an Amended and Restated Declaration of 

Covenants, Restrictions, Easements, Charges and Liens (hereinafter referred to as the “1st 

Amended Declaration”); and 

WHEREAS, the Association desires to amend and restate the Original Declaration and 

the 1st Amended Declaration to clarify certain issues, namely to remove certain properties from 



 

{01567745;V3}2 
 

the Association, but to otherwise maintain the purpose of the Association; and 

WHEREAS, in order to amend the Original Declaration and/or the 1st Amended 

Declaration, the Original Declaration requires that the Association first obtain the Township’s 

approval of the proposed amendment to the 1st Amended Declaration; and 

WHEREAS, the Township is willing to approve the request to amend the Original 

Declaration and the 1st Amended Declaration to remove the five (5) single family lots from the 

Association, subject to certain conditions.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Supervisors 

of Lower Providence Township this 19th day of January, 2023, that said request for approval 

of the amendment to the Original Declaration and the 1st Amended Declaration is 

GRANTED, subject to the following conditions:  

1. The lots to be removed from the Association are five (5) single family lots, and are 

those identified as lots 181-185 in the Final Record Plan prepared by Alan C. Breyer 

of Yerkes Associates, Inc., dated January 23, 1990, last revised February 14, 1995, a 

copy of which is attached hereto, incorporated herein and labeled Exhibit “A”. 

2. Any and all improvements for which the Association is currently responsible for all 

maintenance, repair and replacement, including but not limited to all open space, 

stormwater facilities and the private roadways known as “Greene’s Meadow Drive” 

and “Greene’s Way Circle,” along with all associated rights of way, curbs and 

sidewalks, to the extent those remain part of the Association, shall remain in the full 

care, custody, ownership and control of the Association. 

3. No additional or further maintenance obligations shall be imposed upon the Township 

by way of this approval, including but not limited to any maintenance obligations for 



 

{01567745;V3}3 
 

any curbs, sidewalks, rights of way, roadways, open space, stormwater facilities or 

other improvements that are, were or shall in the future become the property or 

responsibility of the Association.  Nothing herein shall be construed to in any way 

limit the Township’s rights with respect to any improvements.   

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence 

Township that approval is further subject to the condition that a final recorded copy of 

the Amended Declaration shall be provided to the Township Solicitor immediately 

upon receipt by the Association.   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence 

Township that approval is further conditioned upon acceptance of the conditions contained 

herein by the Association and signifying acceptance thereof by signing a copy of this 

Resolution. In the event that the execution of this Resolution is not delivered to the Township 

within ten (10) days from receipt, it shall be deemed that the Association does not accept 

these conditions and the approval conditioned upon his,  her or its acceptance is hereby 

revoked, and the aforementioned Association’s request is considered to be denied for the reasons 

set forth above. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

{01567745;V3}4 
 

 

RESOLVED and APPROVED this 2nd day of February, 2023. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF LOWER 

PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

 
 
 
 

By:    

E.J. Mentry, Secretary                     Cara Coless, Chair



 

{01567745;V3}5 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF CONDITIONS: 

 

The Providence Greene Home Owners’ Association, the Applicant for the above referenced 

request related to the development known as Providence Green, Lower Providence Township 

does hereby acknowledge and accept the conditions set forth in the Approval Resolution issued 

by the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township and accept the conditions contained 

herein as recited above. 
 
 
Witness:      Applicant:  Providence Greene Home  

Owners’ Association  
          
 
 
              
_______________________________________       
       
Name:        Name:       
 
 
 
Title:       Title:      
 
 
 
 
Date:       Date:      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

{01573937;V1}1 
 

LOWER PROVIDENCE T OWNSHIP 
 

RESOLUTION FOR AMENDED PRELIMINARY 
LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVAL 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-11 
 
 

WHEREAS, Audubon Land Development (hereinafter referred to as “Applicant”) has 

submitted an application for Amended Preliminary and Final Major Land Development approval 

of Phase II of Audubon Square 5, which would: expand Building 5 from 27,760 square feet to 

144,000 square feet for use as a self-storage facility, expand Building 1 from 15,900 square feet 

to 21,000 square feet for use as retail, add Building 10 with existing 21,340 square feet to the 

plan, add new Building 8 for a 2,661 Restaurant and a 3,739 square foot Retail Use, and add 

Building 9 for a 7,350 square foot Restaurant Use (hereinafter referred to as the “Project”) for 

the property at or near S. Trooper Road and Eisenhower Boulevard, fronting Trooper Road just 

South of Forge Avenue, Lower Providence Township, Montgomery County (hereinafter 

collectively referred to as the “Property” or “Properties”), as set forth in a 68-sheet set of plans 

entitled “Audubon Square 5” prepared by Bursich Associates, Inc., of Pottstown, Pennsylvania, 

dated June 13, 2018, last revised December 7, 2022 (hereinafter collectively referred to as 

“Plans”); and 

WHEREAS, the Plans propose to develop the Property as set forth above, along with 

grading, utilities, landscaping, lighting, stormwater management facilities, and erosion control, 

as further depicted on the Plans; and  

WHEREAS, the Township Engineer has issued a review letter dated January 11, 2023 and 

the Township Traffic Engineer has issued a review letter dated December 23, 2022 (collectively, 



 

{01573937;V1}2 
 

“Engineering Review Letters”); and 

WHEREAS, the Lower Providence Board of Supervisors has previously issued Preliminary 

and Final Major Land Development approval for the Property via Resolution 2018-03;  

WHEREAS, the Lower Providence Planning Commission issued review comments dated 

October 26, 2022; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township (hereinafter referred 

to as “Board”) is prepared to grant conditional approval of Applicant’s Amended Preliminary 

and Final Major Land Development Application, subject to certain conditions.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Supervisors of Lower 

Providence Township this 2nd day of February, 2023, that said application for Amended 

Preliminary and Final Major Land Development Plan Approval is GRANTED, subject to the 

following conditions: 

1. Plans: The Board grants approval subject to the conditions described herein, to the Plans 

prepared by prepared by Bursich Associates, Inc. dated June 13, 2018 and last revised December 

7, 2022. 

2. Zoning Ordinance.  The Application is granted subject to the condition that Applicant obtain any 

and all necessary zoning relief and/or permits prior to commencing construction.   

3. Required Permits and Outside Agency Approvals.  The Applicant or its successors or 

assigns shall provide evidence of securing the following permits or approvals where 

needed: 

a. Sanitary Sewer Permits from the Lower Providence Township Sewer Authority. 

b. Approved DEP Land Planning Module/Waiver. 



 

{01573937;V1}3 
 

c. Receipt of Montgomery County Conservation District Adequacy Letter. 

d. NPDES Permit for Construction Activity. 

e. Approval of PA American Water or Audubon Water Company, as applicable. 

f. PennDOT Highway Occupancy Permit and/or Montgomery County Roads & 

Bridge Highway Occupancy Permit, if required. 

g. Building permits, construction permits, road opening permits, electrical permits. 

grading permits from Lower Providence Township, as applicable. 

h. Shop drawings for all materials associated with water, sanitary sewer and/or 

storm sewer utilities shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the Township 

Engineer prior to commencement of construction. 

 

4. Conditions of Amended Preliminary and Final Land Development Approval. 

Amended Preliminary and Final Land Development Plan Approval is GRANTED subject 

to the following conditions: 

a. Applicant shall comply with the provisions of the review letter of the Township 

Engineer, Woodrow & Associates, dated January 11, 2023 (or the latest revision 

thereof).    

b. Applicant shall comply with the provisions of the review letter of the Township 

Traffic Engineer, McMahon, dated December 23, 2022 (or the latest revision 

thereof).  The Applicant shall pay a traffic impact fee of $23,514.78 

c. Applicant shall comply with the provisions of the Lower Providence Planning 

Commission comments letter dated October 26, 2022.  



 

{01573937;V1}4 
 

d. Applicant shall comply with the review comments of the Lower Providence Chief 

of Police dated September 26, 2022 (or the latest revision thereof). 

e. Applicant shall comply with the review comments of the Lower Providence Fire 

Marshal dated January 13, 2023 (or the latest revision thereof).  

f. Applicant shall provide “will serve” letters or other evidence that the premises 

are to be served by public water and sewer and shall submit signed agreements 

to the Township.  

g. All outstanding Township fees associated with the review and approval of the 

foresaid plan shall be paid in full prior to the recording of the final plan. 

h. Prior to plan recording, the Applicant shall verify that there are no existing 

easements, deed restrictions or covenants that would affect the proposed 

development. 

i. Applicant agrees to submit a final plan to Lower Providence Township and the 

Lower Providence Township Engineer for review and approval prior to recording. 

This plan shall indicate compliance with all conditions set forth in this Resolution 

and all Engineer review comments including those contained in the Woodrow & 

Associates and McMahon Associates, Inc., Engineering Review Letters (or the 

latest revision thereof). 

j. Prior to recording of the final plan, the Applicant shall provide the following 

executed agreements for recording in a form acceptable to the Township 

Solicitor, each of which shall be recorded concurrently with the final record 

plans: 



 

{01573937;V1}5 
 

i. Land Development Agreement.  Applicant shall enter into a Land 

Development Agreement with the Township. 

ii. Escrow Agreement.  Applicant shall enter into an Escrow Agreement and 

shall post adequate securities in order to construct public improvements, 

as determined by the Township Engineer. 

iii. Stormwater Operation and Maintenance Agreement. Applicant shall 

enter into a Stormwater Operations and Maintenance Agreement, in a 

form acceptable to the Township Solicitor, which provides ongoing 

maintenance obligations for the Stormwater Management BMPs for the 

lot owners or Home Owners’ Association, as applicable. Facilities, areas or 

structures used as Stormwater Management BMPs shall be enumerated 

as permanent real estate appurtenances and encumbered by the 

Applicant as deed restrictions or conservation easements that run with 

the land.  The ownership and maintenance of these Stormwater 

Management BMPs shall be the responsibility of the individual Lot 

Owners and their heirs, successors or assigns.   

iv. Easement Agreements.  Applicant shall provide all required Easement 

Agreements.     

k. The Applicant shall, within ninety (90) days from the date of Final Land 

Development Approval, if requested by Applicant and approved by the Board of 

Supervisors, submit final Mylars and papers to the Township for signature and 

recording at the Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds. There shall be one (1) 



 

{01573937;V1}6 
 

electronic and five (5) papers submitted. Following release and recording of the 

record plan, the Applicant shall notify the Township Manager and the Township 

Solicitor in writing of the plan book, page number and date of recording by the 

Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds. 

l. Applicant shall pay park and recreation fees in the amount of $257,359.90 

(calculated as $1.10/SF of Commercial, Retail and Restaurant Space, $1.77/SF of 

Office Space, and $0.76/SF of Warehouse Space).  This fee shall be paid prior to 

recording of the final plan approval.   

m. Applicant shall attend a pre-construction meeting with the Township staff and 

appropriate consultants to be held prior to commencement of work. 

n. Prior to the development of each individual lot, the applicant shall apply to 

Lower Providence Township for a building permit. This shall include the 

submission of a grading plan showing the actual building footprint and driveway 

location. 

o. Construction shall not continue past the foundation stage until the 

owner/builder has submitted certification that the first floor and garage floor 

elevations of the proposed structure conform to the plans submitted with the 

grading permit application. The certification shall be submitted to the Township 

Engineer and shall be signed and sealed by the responsible registered 

professional land surveyor licensed in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

p. The applicant shall contact the Township Engineer to perform a final grading 

inspection prior to issuance of an occupancy permit. 



 

{01573937;V1}7 
 

q. The applicant shall submit one (1) electronic and five (5) paper final as-built plans 

to the Township for review and approval prior to the issuance of an occupancy 

permit. This plan shall include stormwater management facilities.  

r. Dead street trees or trees within 100 feet of impervious surfaces must be 

replaced by the property owner within 6 months. 

s. Prior to the issuance of any Certificate of Occupancy or Use and Occupancy 

permit, Applicant, at is sole cost and expense, shall complete all steps necessary 

to dedicate any facilities proposed for dedication to the Township as set forth on 

the Record Plans, including but not limited to dedication of any rights-of-way.   

t. All administrative, legal and engineering expenses owed to the Township for plan 

review and/or planning services shall be paid in full by the Applicant prior to 

release of signed record plans. 

u. The Applicant shall comply in all respects with the rules, regulations and 

requirements of all governmental agencies and/or bodies having jurisdiction with 

respect to this Application and shall assume all costs, expense and responsibility 

in connection therewith, without any liability whatsoever on the part of the 

Township. 

5. Waivers.  

a. Applicant is requesting, and the Board has approved, the following waivers of the 

Lower Providence Township Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance 

(hereinafter “SALDO” or “Ordinance”): 

i. Section 123-31 – Rights of Way, requiring that Applicant provide an 



 

{01573937;V1}8 
 

Ultimate Right of Way on Rittenhouse Road.  Applicant is requesting a 

waiver of this section of the ordinance with regard to Rittenhouse Road 

only, as future land development in the area will provide the required 

Right of Way at that time.  Because of the nature of the Project and the 

future foreseeable development in the area, the Board of Supervisors has 

GRANTED this waiver from the Ordinance. 

ii. Section 123-32 – Curbs and Storm Sewers, requiring the provision of 

curbs and storm sewers along Rittenhouse Road and Egypt Road.  

Applicant is requesting a waiver of this section of the ordinance with 

respect to Rittenhouse and Egypt Roads only, as future land development 

in the area will provide the appropriate curbs and storm sewers.  Because 

of the nature of the Project and the future foreseeable development in 

the area, the Board of Supervisors has GRANTED this waiver from the 

Ordinance. 

iii. Section §123-33, which requires sidewalks to be constructed along 

Rittenhouse an Egypt Road.  Applicant is requesting a waiver of this 

section of the ordinance with respect to Rittenhouse and Egypt Roads 

only, as future land development in the area will provide the appropriate 

sidewalks.  Because of the nature of the Project and the future 

foreseeable development in the area, the Board of Supervisors has 

GRANTED this waiver from the Ordinance. 

iv. Section §123-36.(2)(d), which requires Access Drive C to be at least five 



 

{01573937;V1}9 
 

(5) feet from the property line.  Applicant has requested a waiver of this 

section to allow Access Drive C (which will be extended to Eisenhower 

Road) to be closer than 5’ from the property line at its intersection with 

Norris Hall Road.  Based upon the existing conditions at the Property and 

the location of the proposed improvements, the Board has GRANTED this 

waiver from this section of the Ordinance. 

v. Section 123-37.C – Parking, which requires parking lot islands to be 

landscaped.  Applicant is seeking a waiver of this section of the Ordinance 

with respect to the parking lots north of Buildings 5, 6 and 7, as those 

areas are within the Transco Gas Pipeline easement, and plantings are 

not allowed.  Applicant has provided required trees south of the 

easement along the edge of the easement.  Because of the location of the 

easement and Applicant’s provision of additional trees elsewhere, the 

Board has GRANTED this waiver from this section of the Ordinance.   

vi. Section 123-37.L(2)(a) – Planting Strip, requiring a planting strip between 

Buildings 8 and 9.  Applicant is requesting this waiver from the Ordinance 

because the area is too narrow to add a landscape median without losing 

a row of parking spaces which are needed for the businesses.  Due to the 

scope of the Project and the need for parking, the Board of Supervisors 

has GRANTED this waiver from this section of the Ordinance. 

vii. Section 123-37.M(2)(b) – Driveway Width, requiring Access Drive D to be 

28 feet wide.  Applicant is requesting a waiver of this section of the 



 

{01573937;V1}10 
 

Ordinance to allow Access Drive D to be 24 feet wide to match the 

existing width of this driveway.  Based upon the existing conditions at the 

Property and the location of the proposed improvements, the Board has 

GRANTED this waiver from this section of the Ordinance. 

viii. Section 123-143 – Land Use Design Manual, Section 1.1.4 – Trails, 

requiring a 10 foot trail width.  Applicant is requesting a waiver of this 

section of the Ordinance to construct the relocated trail along Access 

Drive C to match the previously constructed trail width of 8 feet.  Based 

upon the existing conditions at the Property and the location of the 

proposed improvements, the Board has GRANTED this waiver from this 

section of the Ordinance. 

b. The waiver set forth herein are subject to the following conditions of approval:  

i. Applicant shall ensure that Norris Hall Road will be extended to Access 

Road C in Phase 2 and to Egypt Road by 2024.   

ii. The revised plan includes sit-down restaurants, rather than drive-thru 

restaurants.  

iii. A post-construction traffic study shall be completed for the intersection 

of Avenue D and Forge Avenue within three (3) months of the issuance of 

final Use and Occupancy certificates of all buildings, and Applicant shall 

comply with all recommendations contained therein.   

iv. All other conditions of the approval set forth in Resolution 2018-03 

remain in full force and effect unless modified herein.   



 

{01573937;V1}11 
 

 

  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township 

that this preliminary plan approval is further conditioned upon acceptance of the conditions 

contained herein by the Applicant and signifying acceptance thereof by signing a copy of this 

Resolution. In the event that the execution of this Resolution is not delivered to the Township 

within ten (10) days from receipt, it shall be deemed that the Applicant does not accept 

these conditions and approvals conditioned upon his or her acceptance are hereby revoked, 

and the aforementioned Applicant's plan is considered to be denied for the reasons set forth 

above. 

RESOLVED and APPROVED this 2nd day of February, 2023. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

ATTEST: 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF LOWER 
PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

 
 
 
 

By :   

E.J. Mentry, Secretary       Cara Coless, Chair



 

{01573937;V1}12 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF CONDITIONS: 

 
Audubon Land Development, the Applicant and record owner of located at or near S. Trooper 
Road and Eisenhower Boulevard, fronting Trooper Road just South of Forge Avenue, Lower 
Providence Township, Montgomery County, does hereby acknowledge and accept the 
Amended Preliminary and Final Major Land Development Plan Approval issued by the Board of 
Supervisors of Lower Providence Township and accept the conditions contained herein as 
recited above. 
 
 
Witness:      Applicant:  Audubon Land Development   
          
 
 
              
              
Name:        Name:       
 
 
 
Title:       Title:      
 
 
 
Date:       Date:      
 



 

{01573989;V1}1 
 

LOWER PROVIDENCE T OWNSHIP 
 

RESOLUTION FOR PRELIMINARY AND FINAL 
LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVAL 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-12 
 
 

WHEREAS, BrightView Landscaping (hereinafter referred to as “Applicant”) has 

submitted an application for Preliminary and Final Major Land Development approval of a plan 

proposing the construction of ground mounted solar panels for charging the new electric fleet 

and the modernization of existing structures and the stormwater management facilities 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Project”) for the property located at 400 N. Park Avenue, Lower 

Providence, Montgomery County, further identified as Montgomery County Tax Map Parcel 

Number 43-00-10543-00-7 (hereinafter referred to as the “Property”), as set forth in a 13-sheet 

set of plans prepared by RGS Associates of Lancaster, Pennsylvania, dated July 25, 2022 

(hereinafter collectively referred to as “Plans”); and 

WHEREAS, the Plans propose to develop the Property to demolish the existing structure 

which currently fronts along Park Avenue, replacing it with the electric vehicle charging canopy, 

in a phased approach, along with grading, utilities, landscaping, lighting, stormwater 

management facilities, and erosion control, as further depicted on the Plans; and  

WHEREAS, the Township Engineer has issued a review letter dated August 10, 2022, the 

Township Traffic Engineer has issued a review letter dated January 10, 2023 and the Township 

Landscape Engineer has issued a review letter dated January 12, 2023 (collectively, “Engineering 

Review Letters”); and 

WHEREAS, the Lower Providence Planning Commission issued review comments dated 



 

{01573989;V1}2 
 

October 26, 2022; and  

WHEREAS, the Montgomery County Planning Commission issued a review letter dated 

September 26, 2022; and  

WHEREAS, the Lower Providence Zoning Hearing Board has issued a Decision dated 

November 28, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township (hereinafter referred 

to as “Board”) is prepared to grant conditional approval of Applicant’s Preliminary and Final 

Major Land Development Application, subject to certain conditions.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Supervisors of Lower 

Providence Township this 2nd day of February, 2023, that said application for Preliminary and 

Final Major Land Development Plan Approval is GRANTED, subject to the following conditions: 

1. Plans: The Board grants approval subject to the conditions described herein, to the Plans 

prepared by prepared by RGS Associates, dated July 25, 2022. 

2. Zoning Ordinance.  The Application is granted subject to the condition that Applicant obtain any 

and all necessary zoning relief and/or permits prior to commencing construction.  The 

Application is granted subject to the further condition that Applicant comply with the November 

28, 2022 Decision of the Lower Providence Township Zoning Hearing Board.  

3. Required Permits and Outside Agency Approvals.  The Applicant or its successors or 

assigns shall provide evidence of securing the following permits or approvals where 

needed: 

a. Sanitary Sewer Permits from the Lower Providence Township Sewer Authority. 

b. Approved DEP Land Planning Module/Waiver. 



 

{01573989;V1}3 
 

c. Receipt of Montgomery County Conservation District Adequacy Letter. 

d. NPDES Permit for Construction Activity. 

e. Approval of PA American Water or Audubon Water Company, as applicable. 

f. PennDOT Highway Occupancy Permit and/or Montgomery County Roads & 

Bridge Highway Occupancy Permit, if required. 

g. Building permits, construction permits, road opening permits, electrical permits. 

grading permits from Lower Providence Township, as applicable. 

h. Shop drawings for all materials associated with water, sanitary sewer and/or 

storm sewer utilities shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the Township 

Engineer prior to commencement of construction. 

 

4. Conditions of Amended Preliminary and Final Land Development Approval. 

Amended Preliminary and Final Land Development Plan Approval is GRANTED subject 

to the following conditions: 

a. Applicant shall comply with the provisions of the review letter of the Township 

Engineer, Woodrow & Associates, dated August 10, 2022 (or the latest revision 

thereof).    

b. Applicant shall comply with the provisions of the review letter of the Township 

Traffic Engineer, McMahon, dated January 10, 2023 (or the latest revision 

thereof).  No traffic impact fee is due and owing at this time.   

c. Applicant shall comply with the provisions of the review letter of the Township 

Landscape Architect, Thomas Comitta Associates, Inc., dated January 12, 2023 (or 



 

{01573989;V1}4 
 

the latest revision thereof).  

d. Applicant shall comply with the provisions of the Lower Providence Planning 

Commission comments letter dated October 26, 2022.  

e. Applicant shall comply with the provisions of the review letter of the 

Montgomery County Planning Commission dated September 26, 2022 (or the 

latest revision thereof).  

f. Applicant shall comply with the review comments of the Lower Providence Chief 

of Police dated August 15, 2022 (or the latest revision thereof). 

g. Applicant shall comply with the review comments of the Lower Providence Fire 

Marshal dated August 3, 2022 (or the latest revision thereof).  

h. Applicant shall comply with the Lower Providence Township Guide for Ground 

Mounted Solar Energy Systems.  

i. Applicant shall provide “will serve” letters or other evidence that the premises 

are to be served by public water and sewer and shall submit signed agreements 

to the Township.  

j. All outstanding Township fees associated with the review and approval of the 

foresaid plan shall be paid in full prior to the recording of the final plan. 

k. Prior to plan recording, the Applicant shall verify that there are no existing 

easements, deed restrictions or covenants that would affect the proposed 

development. 

l. Applicant agrees to submit a final plan to Lower Providence Township and the 

Lower Providence Township Engineer for review and approval prior to recording. 



 

{01573989;V1}5 
 

This plan shall indicate compliance with all conditions set forth in this Resolution 

and all Engineer review comments including those contained in the Woodrow & 

Associates and McMahon Associates, Inc., Engineering Review Letters (or the 

latest revision thereof). 

m. Prior to recording of the final plan, the Applicant shall provide the following 

executed agreements for recording in a form acceptable to the Township 

Solicitor, each of which shall be recorded concurrently with the final record 

plans: 

i. Land Development Agreement.  Applicant shall enter into a Land 

Development Agreement with the Township. 

ii. Escrow Agreement.  Applicant shall enter into an Escrow Agreement and 

shall post adequate securities in order to construct public improvements, 

as determined by the Township Engineer. 

iii. Stormwater Operation and Maintenance Agreement. Applicant shall 

enter into a Stormwater Operations and Maintenance Agreement, in a 

form acceptable to the Township Solicitor, which provides ongoing 

maintenance obligations for the Stormwater Management BMPs for the 

lot owners or Home Owners’ Association, as applicable. Facilities, areas or 

structures used as Stormwater Management BMPs shall be enumerated 

as permanent real estate appurtenances and encumbered by the 

Applicant as deed restrictions or conservation easements that run with 

the land.  The ownership and maintenance of these Stormwater 



 

{01573989;V1}6 
 

Management BMPs shall be the responsibility of the individual Lot 

Owners and their heirs, successors or assigns.   

iv. Easement Agreements.  Applicant shall provide all required Easement 

Agreements.     

n. The Applicant shall, within ninety (90) days from the date of Final Land 

Development Approval, if requested by Applicant and approved by the Board of 

Supervisors, submit final Mylars and papers to the Township for signature and 

recording at the Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds. There shall be one (1) 

electronic and five (5) papers submitted. Following release and recording of the 

record plan, the Applicant shall notify the Township Manager and the Township 

Solicitor in writing of the plan book, page number and date of recording by the 

Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds. 

o. Applicant shall pay park and recreation fees in the amount of $6,108.90 

(calculated as $1.10/SF of additional building coverage).  This fee shall be paid 

prior to recording of the final plan approval.   

p. Applicant shall attend a pre-construction meeting with the Township staff and 

appropriate consultants to be held prior to commencement of work. 

q. Prior to the development of each individual lot, the applicant shall apply to 

Lower Providence Township for a building permit. This shall include the 

submission of a grading plan showing the actual building footprint and driveway 

location. 

r. Construction shall not continue past the foundation stage until the 



 

{01573989;V1}7 
 

owner/builder has submitted certification that the first floor and garage floor 

elevations of the proposed structure conform to the plans submitted with the 

grading permit application. The certification shall be submitted to the Township 

Engineer and shall be signed and sealed by the responsible registered 

professional land surveyor licensed in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

s. The applicant shall contact the Township Engineer to perform a final grading 

inspection prior to issuance of an occupancy permit. 

t. The applicant shall submit one (1) electronic and five (5) paper final as-built plans 

to the Township for review and approval prior to the issuance of an occupancy 

permit. This plan shall include stormwater management facilities.  

u. Dead street trees or trees within 100 feet of impervious surfaces must be 

replaced by the property owner within 6 months. 

v. Prior to the issuance of any Certificate of Occupancy or Use and Occupancy 

permit, Applicant, at is sole cost and expense, shall complete all steps necessary 

to dedicate any facilities proposed for dedication to the Township as set forth on 

the Record Plans, including but not limited to dedication of any rights-of-way.   

w. All administrative, legal and engineering expenses owed to the Township for plan 

review and/or planning services shall be paid in full by the Applicant prior to 

release of signed record plans. 

x. The Applicant shall comply in all respects with the rules, regulations and 

requirements of all governmental agencies and/or bodies having jurisdiction with 

respect to this Application and shall assume all costs, expense and responsibility 



 

{01573989;V1}8 
 

in connection therewith, without any liability whatsoever on the part of the 

Township. 

5. Waivers.  

a. Applicant is requesting, and the Board has approved, the following waivers of the 

Lower Providence Township Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance 

(hereinafter “SALDO” or “Ordinance”): 

i. The Project will require certain public improvements to be constructed 

along Park Avenue.  The scope of the required public improvements will 

be determined, in part, by PennDOT and, in part, by the Township.  

Applicant has requested a partial waiver of all public improvement 

requirements along Park Avenue to defer such installation until Phase II 

of the Project is completed.  Given the scope of the Project, the Board of 

Supervisors has GRANTED this partial waiver of these requirements of the 

Ordinance, on the conditions that (1) landscape buffering is completed as 

soon as installation of the panels is complete and (2) the remaining public 

improvements are completed within two (2) years of the date of this 

approval resolution, regardless of the timing of the completion of Phase II 

of the Project.   

b. The waiver set forth herein are subject to the following conditions of approval:  

i. Landscape buffering shall be completed as soon as installation of the 

panels is complete. 

ii. All remaining public improvements shall be completed within two (2) 



 

{01573989;V1}9 
 

years of the date of this approval Resolution.  

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township 

that this preliminary plan approval is further conditioned upon acceptance of the conditions 

contained herein by the Applicant and signifying acceptance thereof by signing a copy of this 

Resolution. In the event that the execution of this Resolution is not delivered to the Township 

within ten (10) days from receipt, it shall be deemed that the Applicant does not accept 

these conditions and approvals conditioned upon his or her acceptance are hereby revoked, 

and the aforementioned Applicant's plan is considered to be denied for the reasons set forth 

above. 

RESOLVED and APPROVED this 2nd day of February, 2023. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

ATTEST: 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF LOWER 
PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

 
 
 
 

By :   

E.J. Mentry, Secretary       Cara Coless, Chair



 

{01573989;V1}10 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF CONDITIONS: 

 
BrightView Landscaping, the Applicant and record owner of located at 400 N. Park Avenue, 
Lower Providence Township, Montgomery County, Tax Parcel Number 43-00-10543-00-7  does 
hereby acknowledge and accept the Preliminary and Final Land Development Plan Approval 
issued by the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township and accept the conditions 
contained herein as recited above. 
 
 
Witness:      Applicant:  BrightView Landscaping   
          
 
 
              
              
Name:        Name:       
 
 
 
Title:       Title:      
 
 
 
Date:       Date:      
 



 

{01573990;V1}1 
 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

RESOLUTION No. 2023-13 

 
WHEREAS, Select Pizza Grill (hereinafter referred to as “Applicant”) has submitted a 

request for waiver of the Land Development Review and Approval process for a project 

involving the construction of an addition defined as Pergola No. 1 and Pergola No. 2 and 

associated modifications to the parking areas (hereinafter referred to as the “Project”) on property 

located at 711 S. Trooper Road, Norristown, Montgomery County, Pennsylvania, further 

identified as Montgomery County Tax Parcel Number 43-00-03555-07-4 (hereinafter referred to 

as the “Property”), whereon an existing commercial building is constructed; and 

WHEREAS, the Project will result in no increase in impervious coverage;  

WHEREAS, Applicant will apply for and obtain any and all necessary demolition, 

building or other required permits related to the Project and will be subject to any and all fees 

and inspections required through the permitting process; and  

WHEREAS, Township staff and the Township Engineer have reviewed the Project and 

have determined that the Project is appropriate for a waiver of the land development review and 

approval process; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township (hereinafter 

referred to as “Board”) is prepared to grant approval of Applicant’s request to waive the Land 

Development review and approval process, subject to certain conditions.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Supervisors 

of Lower Providence Township this 2nd day of February, 2023, that said request for waiver of 

the Land Development review and approval process is GRANTED, subject to the 



 

{01573990;V1}2 
 

following conditions:  

1. Plans:  Applicant shall submit any and all plans reasonably required by the 

Township to review the Project and issue all required permits.   

 

2. Conditions of Waiver of Land Development Review and Approval Process. 

Waiver of the Land Development Review and Approval Process is GRANTED 

subject to the following conditions: 

a. Applicant shall comply with the comments contained in the review 

letter of Woodrow Associates dated December 6, 2022 (or the 

latest revision thereof).  

b. If an electric permit is required, the Applicant shall consider 

installation of a 240vac / 50A circuit near a parking spot to support 

the later addition of a Level 2 EV charger.  

c. Applicant shall comply with all applicable statutes, codes or 

ordinances during the permitting and construction of the Project. 

d. Applicant shall apply for and obtain all demolition, building and 

other applicable permits related to the Project prior to 

commencement of any construction related to the Project.  

e. Applicant shall apply for and obtain a grading permit from the 

Township prior to commencement of any construction related to 

the Project.   

f. Applicant shall be subject to all applicable fees and inspections 

required by the Township.   

g. Prior to project completion, the Applicant shall submit five (5) sets 

of paper as-built plans, and an as-built file in PDF format, that 

have been reviewed and approved by the Township Engineer.  

h. Applicant shall pay all monies related to professional review or 

other fees to the Township prior to recording of the final plans.  

i. Applicant acknowledges that the Township’s approval of the 

waiver request is based on Applicant’s description and scope of the 

proposed project as depicted on the site plan prepared by Bursich 

Associates, dated November 1, 2022 as submitted to the Township 

to include indications of the location of the proposed pergolas and 

parking improvements. The Township reserves the right to revoke 

the approval of the waiver request in the event that the scope of the 

project deviates from the Applicant’s proposal as described herein. 

 

 

3. Waivers. Applicant is requesting, and the Board has approved, waivers from the 



 

{01573990;V1}3 
 

following provisions of the Lower Providence Township Subdivision and Land 

Development Ordinance (hereinafter referred to as the “SALDO”):  

a. Chapter 123 – requiring that all proposed subdivisions and land 

development comply with the provisions and processes set forth in the SALDO.  

The Board has GRANTED this waiver from the SALDO due to the size and scope 

of the Project.    

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence 

Township that this preliminary and final plan approval is further conditioned upon acceptance of 

the conditions contained herein by the Applicant and signifying acceptance thereof by signing a 

copy of this Resolution. In the event that the execution of this Resolution is not delivered to the 

Township within ten (10) days from receipt, it shall be deemed that the Applicant does not 

accept these conditions and approvals conditioned upon his or her acceptance are hereby 

revoked, and the aforementioned Applicant's plan is considered to be denied for the reasons set 

forth above. 

 

RESOLVED and APPROVED this 2nd day of February, 2023. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF LOWER 

PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

 
 
 
 

By:    

E.J. Mentry, Secretary                     Cara Coless, Chair



 

{01573990;V1}4 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF CONDITIONS: 

 

Select Pizza Grill, the Applicant for the above referenced application related to Parcel No.  43-

00-03555-07-4 located at 711 S. Trooper Road, Norristown, Lower Providence Township does 

hereby acknowledge and accept the waiver of Land Development Review and Approval Process 

issued by the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township and accept the conditions 

contained herein as recited above. 
 
 
Witness:      Applicant:  Select Pizza Grill   
          
 
 
              
_______________________________________       
       
Name:        Name:       
 
 
 
Title:       Title:      
 
 
 
Date:       Date:      
 











Lower Providence APS‐Ridge & Eagleville
Extended Price Analysis

Reference Number Description Type UOM Quantity Extended Estimate Lenni Electric Corporation ARMOUR & SONS ELECTRIC, INC. Charles A Higgins & Sons, Inc. C.M. High Inc. Carr and Duff, LLC Average

100% 84.67% 82.83% 52.09% 38.45%

$19,222.00  $22,700.00  $23,205.50  $36,900.00  $49,985.00 

$19,222.00  $22,700.00  $23,205.50  $36,900.00  $49,985.00 

0951‐4022 PEDESTRIAN STUB POLE, TYPE B Base EA 6 $7,590.00  $9,900.00  $11,724.00  $18,000.00  $23,100.00  $14,062.80 

0954‐0012 2 INCH CONDUIT Base LF 55 $786.50  $550.00  $522.50  $825.00  $660.00  $668.80 

0954‐0151 TRENCH AND BACKFILL, TYPE I Base LF 35 $850.50  $1,750.00  $1,050.00  $1,050.00  $525.00  $1,045.10 

0955‐4133
COUNTDOWN PEDESTRIAN LED RETROFIT 
MODULE (16‐INCH X 18‐INCH) Base EA 6 $2,940.00  $1,500.00  $2,889.00  $2,400.00  $16,200.00  $5,185.80 

0956‐0790
ACCESSIBLE PEDESTRIAN SIGNALS, THREE 
CROSSINGS Base EA 1 $7,055.00  $9,000.00  $7,020.00  $14,625.00  $9,500.00  $9,440.00 

Bid Price Ratio

Total Extended

Default Item Group



 

 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP  

 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA  

 

RESOLUTION #2023-14 

 

WHEREAS, Lower Providence Township is a municipality located in the County of 

Montgomery, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and is organized pursuant to the Second Class 

Township Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, as part of its SR 4004 MTF project involving the intersection of Park 

Avenue (SR 4004), Eagleville Road (SR 4006), and Crawford Road (T-324), Lower Providence 

Township is installing a stormwater management system to remove the stormwater safely from 

the roadway; and 

 

WHEREAS, upon completion of construction, Lower Providence Township and 

PennDOT have agreed to jointly operate and maintain the completed stormwater management 

system; and 

 

WHEREAS, PennDOT is requesting that Lower Providence Township enter into the 

attached Stormwater Management System Installation and Maintenance Agreement; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Supervisors of Lower 

Providence Township that the Chair of the Board of Supervisors is authorized and directed to 

sign the attached Stormwater Management System Installation and Maintenance Agreement on 

behalf of Lower Providence Township and that the Township Manager is authorized and directed 

to attest the Agreement. 

 

RESOLVED and ADOPTED this 2nd day of February 2023. 

  

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF LOWER 

PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________  By: ________________________________ 

E.J. Mentry, Township Manager/Secretary  Cara Coless, Chair 



EFFECTIVE DATE: ___________________
(PennDOT will insert)

COUNTY(IES): Montgomery AGREEMENT NO.:
PROJECT SHORT TITLE: Park Ave Improvements FEDERAL I.D. NO.: 23-6000402
PROJECT (SR & SEC.): 4004 MTF SAP VENDOR NO.: 138722
MPMS NO.: 105077

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM INSTALLATION AND
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

This Storm Water Management System Installation and Maintenance Agreement
(“Agreement”) is made by and between the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, acting
through the Department of Transportation (“PennDOT”),

and

Lower Providence Township, a political subdivision located in Montgomery County,
duly and properly formed under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, acting
through its proper officials (“Municipality”).

Background

Municipality is designing and constructing a highway project, which will benefit both
Municipality and PennDOT.  During the construction of the project, Municipality is
installing a storm water management system to remove the storm water safely from the
roadway.  Upon the completion of construction, the Municipality and PennDOT has
agreed to jointly operate and maintain the completed storm water management system.

The parties, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

1. Description and Location. Municipality shall design and construct a highway
project, with its own forces or by contract, involving improvements identified in
PennDOT’s files as SR 4004, Section MTF (the “Project”) which will benefit both
Municipality and PennDOT. The Project includes a storm water management system
(“System”) at the following location(s). The locations are termed the “Entry Area.”

County State Route Beginning
Segment/Offset

Ending
Segment/Offset

Montgomery 4004 0050/0202 0050/1902



The System is being installed to remove the storm water safely from the roadway and
the designs of SR 4004 Park Avenue and SR 4006 Eagleville Road include the
installation of drainage systems to safely convey the runoff from the roadway to the
nearby receiving streams. To maintain the integrity of the streams, stormwater control
measures (SCMs) will be installed to provide volume, rate, and water quality benefits
for the roadway runoff. The SCMs are designed in accordance with the Chapter 102
regulations and are permitted under NPDES Permit No. PAC460503 issued on
November 24, 2020 by the Montgomery County Conservation District. Drainage
system design along Crawford Road (T-324) includes installation of drainage systems to
safely convey the runoff from the township roadway. Township road facilities will be
owned and maintained but the Township.

2. Design and Construction.
a. Work to Conform to PennDOT Highway Policy and Specifications.

Project design, construction, and maintenance shall be in accordance with
PennDOT’s plans, policies, procedures, criteria, and specifications,
including the most current versions of PennDOT Publication No. 70M,
Guidelines for Design of Local Roads and Streets; PennDOT Design
Manuals (Publication Nos. 10, 10A, 13M, 14M, 15M, 16M, and 24);
PennDOT Policy Letters; PennDOT Form No. 442, Bureau of Design
Specifications for Consultant Agreements, Division I; and PennDOT
Publication No. 408, Specifications, its supplements and amendments.

b. Notice and Inspection. Municipality shall notify the PennDOT before
construction and invite the PennDOT to observe and inspect the Project
components to be jointly maintained.

c. Notice of Completion. Upon completion of the Project by Municipality or
its contractors and in accordance with its associated permits, Municipality
shall provide the PennDOT with a set of as-built System plans (“System
Plans”).

3. Maintenance Requirements.
Maintenance and Inspection. Upon the completion of construction, the Municipality
shall complete routine maintenance operations and PennDOT will complete visual site
inspections and Condition Assessment Inspection as noted on the Maintenance
/Inspection Responsibility Table (Exhibit A) and attached plans (Exhibit B), at its sole
cost and expense, the completed System (including, but not limited to, post-
construction controls, earth retainment systems, earth slopes, ditches, barrier fence, and
drainage systems). The Municipality shall establish a formalized maintenance program,
to be performed by contract or with its own forces, to insure an acceptable level of



physical integrity and operation consistent with original design standards. This
maintenance program, established in accordance with standards determined to be
acceptable by the PennDOT and any permit conditions, appropriate preventative
maintenance (including a systematic record-keeping system and the means to handle
notification and implementation of emergency repairs). The Municipality’s obligation to
operate and maintain the drainage facilities and the completed Project improvements
includes maintaining vegetated and non-vegetated items like grass, shrubs, trees, rocks,
and associated drainage. Maintenance also includes maintaining the number and
condition of plantings and maintaining growth so required sight distance is not
obstructed. The Municipality shall repair or replace dead trees or plants, mow and
replace ground cover, perform herbicidal spraying, remove litter, and perform other
work specified in this Agreement, its exhibits, and the referenced System Plans. If
requested, copies of maintenance records shall be sent to PennDOT within ten (10) days
of request.

a. Standard of Care. The Municipality shall maintain the System in an
acceptable manner, in accordance with applicable industry practices.
Maintenance includes the work specified in this Agreement, its exhibits, the
applicable project permits, and the referenced System Plans.

b. Post-Construction Storm Water Controls. The Municipality shall perform
routine maintenance on the post-construction storm water controls
indicated on the Project as-built System Plans as part of the System. The
Municipality shall comply with the long-term operation and maintenance
requirements of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
(“NPDES”) permit for the highway project, 25 Pa. Code Chapters 92 and
102, applicable law and regulations, and PennDOT policies related to post-
construction storm water controls.

c. Work to be of High Quality. The Municipality covenants and warrants: its
work and labor pursuant to this Agreement shall be performed in a
professional manner consistent with industry standards; prompt payment
shall be made in full for labor and materials used in the work; the materials
and labor shall conform to PennDOT’s policy and specifications; System
Plans (as approved or as modified and approved) and work shall be subject
to PennDOT’s inspection and approval. If materials or labor destined for
use or used within the state highway right-of-way are rejected by PennDOT
as defective, unsuitable, or otherwise contrary to approvals, then those
materials shall be removed and replaced with other approved materials;
and the labor shall be performed anew to PennDOT’s satisfaction and
approval, at the Municipality’s cost and expense.



d. Project Documents. The Municipality shall provide PennDOT executed
copies of contracts between the Municipality and others for duties assigned
or work contracted. The Municipality shall provide Project documents
requested by PennDOT (including documents related to compliance with
federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances) within seven (7)
calendar days of PennDOT’s request. The Municipality shall ensure
contractors performing work authorized by this Agreement strictly abide
by this Agreement, its exhibits, and referenced System Plans. If the
Municipality requires changes to approved System Plans, it shall submit
new System Plans showing the changes to PennDOT for approval.

e. Post-Construction Inspection. The Municipality shall permit PennDOT
representatives to inspect the drainage facility, at times and locations
PennDOT chooses. If access to the drainage facility is restricted by key,
access badge, or otherwise, PennDOT shall either retain a copy (if PennDOT
installs) or the Municipality shall provide a copy of the key, access badge,
or other access method to PennDOT when the lock is installed.

f. Restoration Requirements. Right-of-way disturbed by the Municipality
shall be restored using materials, design, and workmanship conforming
with the policies and specifications named in this Agreement.

g. PennDOT Maintenance. Upon completion of the Project, and except as
stated in this Agreement, PennDOT shall resume its normal highway
maintenance responsibilities required under the State Highway Law, and
in accordance with PennDOT policies. This Agreement is not intended to
enlarge, and shall not be construed as enlarging, PennDOT’s obligations
regarding state highway system maintenance and operation under the State
Highway Law, Act of June 1, 1945, P.L. 1242, as amended, 36 P.S. § 670-101
et seq., or the Act of September 18, 1961, P.L. 1389, No. 615, as amended, 36
P.S. § 1758-101 et seq.

4. Permission to Use.
a. Right-of-Entry Granted. PennDOT grants the Municipality, its employees,

agents, representatives, and contractors, subject to this Agreement and
PennDOT’s supervision, a right to enter the Entry Area to complete its
maintenance responsibilities under this Agreement.

b. Notification Before Entry. The Municipality shall notify PennDOT at least
forty-eight (48) hours before beginning work in the Entry Area.

c. Access to Work Site. Access to the Entry Area is only allowed as designated
in this Agreement, its Exhibits, and referenced System Plans. Access is only



granted from existing access points along the travelled way of the highway
or those agreed by the parties. The Municipality, its employees, agents,
representatives, and contractors shall not interfere with PennDOT
operations.

d. Access to the Property of Others. This Agreement shall not be considered
authorization to the Municipality or its contractors to encroach on the
property of others. If the Municipality must enter upon land outside
PennDOT’s right-of-way owned by a third party, the Municipality shall, at
its own expense, secure the necessary authorization, release, or right of
entry. The Municipality shall provide evidence of permission to enter upon
an abutting or adjoining property owner’s land, if requested by PennDOT.

5. Safety Requirements.
a. Work Zone Requirements. Work requiring personnel or vehicles on

highway shoulders shall comply with the work zone traffic control
requirements of the Manual of Traffic Control Devices (“MUTCD”) and
PennDOT Publication 213, plus additional special work zone provisions
PennDOT requires. Failure to comply with these requirements shall be
cause for immediate suspension of work until proper traffic controls are
provided.

b. No Impediments to Traffic. The Municipality shall not impede traffic on
the highway. No work or staging is allowed within the travelled way.
Staging is allowed within highway shoulder areas only with PennDOT’s
prior, written consent.

6. Failure to Maintain.
a. Notice of Deficiency. If PennDOT determines the System is not in a state

of good condition (including, but not limited to, the Project components,
drainage systems, and post-construction storm water controls), PennDOT
shall notify the Municipality in writing. The Municipality shall begin
necessary work within five (5) calendar days of receipt of PennDOT’s notice
for items it does not dispute and notify PennDOT in writing of items it does
dispute. The parties shall promptly communicate and meet to resolve
disputed items. The Municipality shall pay the cost to repair the damages.
The Municipality shall complete the undisputed work as promptly as
reasonably possible but in no event later than forty-five (45) calendar days
after written notice is received by the Municipality. The Municipality may
request an additional cure period to address deficiencies identified by
PennDOT. Approval of a cure period request, including extensions, is at
PennDOT’s discretion and shall not be unreasonably withheld. If a
municipal ordinance makes adjacent property owners financially



responsible for the cost of the work, nothing shall prevent the Municipality
from seeking reimbursement from them.

b. Work and Bill. If, after notice, the Municipality fails to repair the deficiency
within a reasonable time, PennDOT may repair, subject to reimbursement
by the Municipality of the actual cost, the Project components or other
aspects of the System not maintained in a condition reasonably satisfactory
to PennDOT. PennDOT shall provide written notice no less than sixty (60)
days before correcting the deficiency. The Municipality shall reimburse
PennDOT for the total cost of maintenance to the System made by
PennDOT.

c. Liquid Fuels Funds. If, after written notice by PennDOT to the
Municipality required by subsections a and b above, the Municipality shall
fail to perform any of these items, conditions, and provisions of this
Agreement, the Municipality, subject to thirty (30) days’ prior written
notice by PennDOT to the Municipality of such default, authorizes
PennDOT to withhold so much of the Municipality’s Liquid Fuels Tax Fund
allocation as may be needed to complete any necessary work and to
reimburse PennDOT in full for all reasonable costs due thereof; and the
Municipality does hereby and herewith authorize PennDOT to withhold
such amount and to apply such funds, or portion thereof, to remedy the
default described in subsections a and b above.

d. Dispute Resolution. The requirement that the Municipality correct
deficiencies within forty-five (45) days shall be temporarily stayed, if the
Municipality timely contests PennDOT’s findings in writing. If the
Municipality contests the deficiencies it shall have thirty (30) days to reach
a written understanding with PennDOT. If the parties do not reach a
written understanding, they may select a civil engineer licensed by the
Commonwealth who has substantial experience as an engineer specializing
in roadway design or storm water to mediate the dispute. The engineer
chosen may not be under an existing contract with either party. To the
extent permitted by law, all documents, discussions, and representations
made in the dispute resolution process shall be confidential and considered
part of confidential compromise negotiations under Pennsylvania Rule of
Evidence Rule 408, Pa.R.E. 408 (relating to confidential mediation
communications and documents). No confidential documents, discussions,
or representations shall be used or introduced in a legal proceeding.

7. Cost Responsibilities.
a. Additional Payments. The cost of changes or field modifications required

by the permitting agencies beyond the scope of this Agreement shall be



paid by the Municipality. Extra work performed by Municipality’s
contractor shall be paid per the appropriate sections of PennDOT’s
Specifications (Publication 408, as amended and supplemented), covering
additional work, extra work, and extra work on a force account basis.

b. Available Funds. The Municipality, by executing this Agreement, certifies
it has on hand or shall acquire sufficient funds to meet its obligations
(including maintenance after completion).

c. Enforcement Costs. The Municipality shall reimburse PennDOT for
expenses, attorneys’ fees, or costs incurred in the enforcement of this
Agreement within thirty (30) calendar days after receiving written notice
PennDOT has incurred them.

8. Additional Improvements. PennDOT must approve additional installation of
Municipality-owned improvements within the System area or that drain to the System
area, other than what is shown in the System Plans, prior to the establishment or
installation of the additional improvements.  Such approval shall be in writing and in a
form to be determined by PennDOT.  PennDOT must approve the designs to ensure that
the installations do not interfere with the operation of the System.  The Municipality shall
be responsible for any structural damage to the additional improvements and any
structural damage to the original basin caused by the additional improvements. The
Municipality shall not approve any development plans or storm water plans that result
in a discharge to the System.

9. Indemnification.
a. In General. The Municipality (including its employees, officers, and agents)

shall pay PennDOT (including its employees, officers, and agents) for a loss
of PennDOT’s caused by the Municipality’s negligence or intentional
misconduct. The Municipality need not pay to the extent the loss was
caused by PennDOT’s negligence or intentional misconduct. A loss means
judgments, settlements, fines, damages, injunctive relief, staff
compensation, decreases in property value, and expenses for defending
against a claim (including fees for legal counsel, expert witnesses, and other
advisers) that PennDOT is legally responsible for or pays in any form. A
loss can be tangible or intangible; can arise from bodily injury, property
damage, or other causes; can be based on tort, breach of contract, or other
theory of recovery; and includes incidental, direct, and consequential
damages. Mere allegations shall not establish an event has been caused by
PennDOT’s negligence or intentional misconduct; an event shall not be
deemed caused by PennDOT’s negligence or intentional misconduct unless
the negligence or intentional misconduct shall have been finally proven in
a court of law.



b. No Waiver of Immunity. This Section shall not be construed to limit the
Municipality in asserting rights or defenses under the Political Subdivision
Tort Claims Act, 42 Pa. C.S. §§ 8541-8564.

c. Applicability. Use under this or another agreement or permit is intended
to be a maintenance obligation under 42 Pa. C.S. § 8542(b)(6)(ii).

d. The Municipality’s Employees. The Municipality waives immunity from
liability to PennDOT from damages, contribution, or indemnity provided
by Section 303 of the Worker’s Compensation Act, Act of June 2, 1915, P.L.
736, as amended, 77 P.S. § 481.

e. PennDOT’s Duty to Notify. PennDOT shall notify the Municipality
promptly when PennDOT knows or should reasonably have known of a
claim for a loss the Municipality might be obligated to pay. PennDOT’s
failure to give timely notice does not terminate the Municipality’s
obligation, except to the extent the failure prejudices the Municipality’s
ability to defend the claim or mitigate losses.

f. Legal Defense of a Claim. PennDOT has control over defending a claim for
a loss (including settling it), unless the Municipality elects to control the
defense as described below, or PennDOT directs the Municipality to control
the defense. Upon receiving notice of a claim for a loss, the Municipality
may take control of the defense by notifying PennDOT. If the Municipality
takes control, the Municipality may retain legal counsel, and PennDOT may
retain its own legal counsel at its expense. The Municipality shall not settle
litigation without PennDOT’s written consent if the settlement imposes a
penalty, non-monetary obligation, imposes limits on a PennDOT program
or project, admits PennDOT’s fault, or does not fully release PennDOT from
liability.

g. Good Faith. PennDOT and the Municipality shall cooperate with each
other in good faith on a claim.

h. No Exclusivity. PennDOT’s rights under this section do not affect other
rights PennDOT might have.

i. Contractors and Subcontractors. The Municipality agrees to require its
contractors and subcontractors to indemnify PennDOT for a loss of
PennDOT’s caused by that contractor or subcontractor’s negligence or
intentional misconduct and shall require its contractors and subcontractors
to provide certificates of insurance, showing the contractors and



subcontractors are sufficiently insured to cover their indemnification
responsibilities. These certificates of insurance shall name PennDOT as an
additional insured. Contractor and subcontractor indemnification shall
apply without regard to a limitation in insurance coverage.

10. Insurance. The Municipality shall name PennDOT as an additional insured on its
general liability insurance policies to provide insurance coverage to the Commonwealth
as stated in those policies.

11. Term and Termination.
a. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date

and shall continue in full force and effect indefinitely, unless terminated.
The Effective Date shall be the date this Agreement is fully executed by the
Municipality and PennDOT and the approvals required by Commonwealth
contracting procedures have been obtained, as indicated by the date of the
last Commonwealth signature. Following full execution, PennDOT will
insert the Effective Date at the top of Page 1.

b. Termination for Convenience by PennDOT. PennDOT may terminate this
Agreement, upon thirty (30) days’ written notice by PennDOT (including,
but not limited to, where PennDOT determines the Entry Area is needed
for highway or other transportation purposes, or the Municipality’s use of
the Entry Area is inconsistent with the safe, efficient, and convenient
movement of traffic). The Municipality’s responsibilities under this
Agreement, except those of liability (whether financial, in tort, or
otherwise), shall terminate. PennDOT reserves the right to require the
removal of any additional installations approved under Section 8 of this
Agreement at the Municipality’s sole expense.

c. Survival Section. The indemnification provisions of this Agreement shall
survive termination or expiration.

d. Accrued Rights and Obligations. Termination of this Agreement shall not
release either party from liability which, at the time of termination, has
already accrued to the other party or which is attributable to a period before
termination, nor preclude either party from pursuing rights and remedies
it may have with respect to a breach of this Agreement.

12. Ordinances and Resolutions. The Municipality shall pass ordinances or
resolutions necessary to accomplish the purposes of this Agreement.

13. Required Commonwealth Exhibits.



a. Standard Provisions. The Municipality shall abide by the most current
versions of the Contractor Integrity Provisions, Contractor Responsibility
Provisions, the Commonwealth Nondiscrimination/Sexual Harassment
Clause, and the Provisions Concerning the Americans with Disabilities Act,
attached to this Agreement as Exhibits C, D, E, and F, respectively. The
word “Contractor” used in these exhibits refers to the Municipality.

b. Right-To-Know Law. The Pennsylvania Right-to-Know Law, 65 P.S. §§
67.101—3104, applies to this Agreement. Therefore, this Agreement is
subject to, and the Municipality shall comply with, the clause entitled
Contract Provisions – Right to Know Law, attached as Exhibit G and made
part of this Agreement. As used in the attached exhibit, the term
“Contractor” refers to the Municipality.

14. General Provisions.
a. Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, interpreted, and

enforced in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania (without regard to conflict of laws provisions) and the
decisions of Pennsylvania courts. The Municipality consents to the
jurisdiction of Commonwealth of Pennsylvania courts and federal courts in
Pennsylvania, waiving claims or defenses that forum is not convenient or
proper. Pennsylvania courts shall have in personam jurisdiction over the
Municipality. The Municipality consents to service of process in a manner
authorized by Pennsylvania law.

b. Notice. Notices and reports arising out of, or from, this Agreement shall be
in writing and given to the parties at the address provided under this
Agreement, either by regular mail, e-mail, or delivery in person. Except for
payments made in accordance with this Agreement, notice shall be deemed
given when received.

If to PennDOT:

Name: District Executive
Address: 7000 Geerdes Boulevard

King of Prussia, PA 19406
Telephone: 610-205-6700
Email Address: lbelmonte@pa.gov

If to Municipality:
Name: E.J. Mentry, Township Manager



Address: 100 Parklane Drive
Eagleville, PA

Telephone: 610-539-8020
Email Address: ementry@lowerprovidence.org

A party may change its contact information by providing written notice to
the other party.

c. Amendments and Modifications. No alterations or variations to this
Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties.
Amendments to this Agreement shall be accomplished through a formal
written document signed by the parties with the same formality as the
original Agreement.

d. Titles Not Controlling. The section titles are for reference only, and shall
not be used to construe the language in this Agreement.

e. Severability. The provisions of this Agreement shall be severable. If a
phrase, clause, sentence or provision of this Agreement is declared to be
contrary to the Constitution of Pennsylvania or the United States, or the
laws of the Commonwealth, or its applicability to a government, agency,
person, or circumstance is held invalid, the validity of the remainder of this
Agreement and its applicability to a government, agency, person, or
circumstance shall not be affected.

f. No Waiver. Either party may elect not to enforce its rights and remedies
under this Agreement in the event of a breach by the other party. Failure by
either party to enforce its rights and remedies shall not be construed a
waiver of a subsequent breach of the same or another term or condition of
this Agreement.

g. Independence of the Parties. It is understood by and between the parties
that nothing contained herein is intended or shall be construed to, in any
respect, create or establish the relationship of partners between the
Municipality and PennDOT, or as constituting PennDOT as the
representative or general agent of the Municipality for any purpose
whatsoever.

h. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by the Municipality,
either in whole or in part, without PennDOT’s written consent.

i. Third-party Beneficiary Rights. This Agreement does not create or intend
to confer rights in or on persons or entities not a party to this Agreement.



j. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable for failure to perform under
this Agreement if such failure to perform arises out of causes beyond the
control and without the fault or negligence of the nonperforming party.
Such causes may include, but are not limited to, acts of God or the public
enemy, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, freight embargoes,
and unusually severe weather.  This provision shall become effective only
if the party failing to perform immediately notifies the other party of the
extent and nature of the problem, limits delay in performance to that
required by the event, and takes all reasonable steps to minimize delays.
This provision shall not be effective unless the failure to perform is beyond
the control and without the fault or negligence of the nonperforming party.

k. Integration and Merger. This Agreement, when executed, approved and
delivered, shall constitute the final, complete and exclusive Agreement
between the parties containing the terms and conditions agreed on by the
parties. Representations, understandings, promises and agreements
pertaining to the subject matter of this Agreement made before or at the
time this Agreement is executed are superseded by this Agreement unless
specifically accepted by another term or provision of this Agreement. No
conditions precedent to the performance of this Agreement exist, except as
expressly set forth in this Agreement.

[The remainder of this page is left blank intentionally.]



The parties have executed this Agreement to be effective the date of the last
signature affixed below.

Attest: MUNICIPALITY*

BY______________________________ BY_________________________________
Title: Date Title: Date

*Please attach a resolution providing proof of signature authority on behalf of a
municipality, authority or other governmental entity. Please include titles and
dates.
________________________________________________________________________

DO NOT WRITE BELOW THIS LINE--FOR DEPARTMENT USE ONLY

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
AND FORM DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

BY____________________________ BY___________________________________
for Chief Counsel Date Deputy Secretary Date

BY____________________________
Deputy General Counsel Date

BY____________________________
Deputy Attorney General Date

AT-72.2



Exhibit A

Stormwater Management Facilities Included in SR 4004 Section MTF
Municipal Project, ECMS 105077, Lower Providence Township, Montgomery County

Maintenance /Inspection Responsibility Table

Feature Type Location Township
Responsibility

PennDOT
Responsibility

Vegetated Swale #1 Vegetated Swale SR 4004 RM per Pub. 888 Table
5.11.1

VSI and CAI per Pub
888 Chapter 3

Vegetated Swale #2 Vegetated Swale SR 4004 RM per Pub. 888 Table
5.11.1

VSI and CAI per Pub
888 Chapter 3

Vegetated Swale #3 Vegetated Swale SR 4004 RM per Pub. 888 Table
5.11.1

VSI and CAI per Pub
888 Chapter 3

Vegetated Swale #4 Vegetated Swale SR 4004 RM per Pub. 888 Table
5.11.1

VSI and CAI per Pub
888 Chapter 3

Vegetated Swale #7 Vegetated Swale SR 4004 RM per Pub. 888 Table
5.11.1

VSI and CAI per Pub
888 Chapter 3

MRC Basin #2 Bioretention w/
Underdrain

SR 4004 RM per Pub. 888 Table
5.4.1

VSI and CAI per Pub
888 Chapter 3

MRC Basin #1 Bioretention w/
Underdrain

SR 4004 RM per Pub. 888 Table
5.4.1

VSI and CAI per Pub
888 Chapter 3

Rain Garden #1 Bioretention SR 4004 RM per Pub. 888 Table
5.4.1

VSI and CAI per Pub
888 Chapter 3

Sumped Inlets SR 4004 RM per Pub 888 Table
6.4.1

VSI and CAI per Pub
888 Chapter 3

Sumped Inlets SR 4006 RM per Pub 888 Table
6.4.1

VSI and CAI per Pub
888 Chapter 3

Features are as shown on the attached PCSWM Plans (Exhibit B).  An M-80 from will be signed if needed
to over-ride PCSWM Plan notes so that maintenance is completed to conform with PennDOT Publication
888, Stormwater Control Measure Maintenance Manual.

RM – Routine Maintenance
CAI – Condition Assessment Inspection
VSI – Visual Site Inspection

Soil Amendments #1 and #2 are less than 5,000 contiguous square feet and therefore are exempt from
inspection.



reaglee
Text Box
Exhibit B

reaglee
Text Box
POST CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN(SHEETS 1-18)



·

·
·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·



·

·

·

·

·



·

·

·

·

·

·

·
·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·



·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·



·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·
·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·



UrxB

ReB

Bo

ReB

DP 004

DP 005



Bo

ReC

Bo

DP 002

DP 003

DP 004

DP 005

ReC



ReC

ReC

Bo



ReB

PlC

PeB

PlC

Bo

Bo

DP 001



PeC

ReC

Rt













·

·

·
·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·



·
·



Enclosure 1 to Management Directive 215.8 Amended Page 1 of 3  

January 14, 2015 

 

CONTRACTOR INTEGRITY PROVISIONS 
 
It is essential that those who seek to contract with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 

(“Commonwealth”) observe high standards of honesty and integrity. They must conduct 

themselves in a manner that fosters public confidence in the integrity of the Commonwealth 
contracting and procurement process. 

 
1. DEFINITIONS. For purposes of these Contractor Integrity Provisions, the following terms 

shall have the meanings found in this Section: 
 

a. “Affiliate” means two or more entities where (a) a parent entity owns more than fifty 
percent of the voting stock of each of the entities; or (b) a common shareholder or group 

of shareholders owns more than fifty percent of the voting stock of each of the entities; or 

(c)  the entities have a common proprietor or general partner. 
 

b. “Consent” means written permission signed by a duly authorized officer or employee of 
the Commonwealth, provided that where the material facts have been disclosed, in 

writing, by prequalification, bid, proposal, or contractual terms, the Commonwealth shall 

be deemed to have consented by virtue of the execution of this contract. 
 

c. “Contractor” means the individual or entity, that has entered into this contract with the 

Commonwealth. 
 

d. “Contractor Related Parties” means any affiliates of the Contractor and the 
Contractor’s executive officers, Pennsylvania officers and directors, or owners of 5 percent 

or more interest in the Contractor. 
 

e. “Financial Interest” means either: 
 

(1) Ownership of more than a five percent interest in any business; or 
 

(2) Holding a position as an officer, director, trustee, partner, employee, or holding any 
position of management. 

 
f. “Gratuity” means tendering, giving, or providing anything of more than nominal 

monetary value including, but not limited to, cash, travel, entertainment, gifts, meals, 

lodging, loans, subscriptions, advances, deposits of money, services, employment, or 
contracts of any kind. The exceptions set forth in the Governor’s Code of Conduct, 

Executive Order 1980-18, the 4 Pa. Code §7.153(b), shall apply. 
 

g. “Non-bid Basis” means a contract awarded or executed by the Commonwealth with 

Contractor without seeking bids or proposals from any other potential bidder or offeror. 
 
2. In furtherance of this policy, Contractor agrees to the following: 

 
a. Contractor shall maintain the highest  standards of honesty and integrity during  the 

performance of this contract and shall take no action in violation of state or federal laws or 

regulations or any other applicable laws or regulations, or other requirements applicable to 

Contractor or that govern contracting or procurement with the Commonwealth. 

 

 

 

Exhibit       

Reagle, Ed
Text Box
C



Enclosure 1 to Management Directive 215.8 Amended Page 2 of 3  

b. Contractor shall establish and implement a written business integrity policy, which 
includes, at a minimum, the requirements of these provisions as they relate to the 

Contractor activity with the Commonwealth and Commonwealth employees and which is 
made known to all Contractor employees. Posting these Contractor Integrity Provisions 

conspicuously in easily-accessible and well-lighted places customarily frequented by 

employees and at or near where the contract services are performed shall satisfy this 
requirement. 

 
c. Contractor, its affiliates, agents, employees and anyone in privity with Contractor shall not 

accept, agree to give, offer, confer, or agree to confer or promise to confer, directly or 

indirectly, any gratuity or pecuniary benefit to any person, or to influence or attempt to 
influence any person in violation of any federal or state law, regulation, executive order of 

the Governor of Pennsylvania, statement of policy, management directive or any other 
published standard of the Commonwealth in connection with performance of work under 

this contract, except as provided in this contract. 
 

d. Contractor shall not have a financial interest in any other contractor, subcontractor, or 

supplier providing services, labor, or material under this contract, unless the financial 
interest is disclosed to the Commonwealth in writing and the Commonwealth consents to 

Contractor’s financial interest prior to Commonwealth execution of the contract. 
Contractor shall disclose the financial interest to the Commonwealth at the time of bid or 

proposal submission, or if no bids or proposals are solicited, no later than Contractor’s 

submission of the contract signed by Contractor. 
 

e. Contractor certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that within the last five (5) 

years Contractor or Contractor Related Parties have not: 
 

(1) been indicted or convicted of a crime involving moral turpitude or business honesty 
or integrity in any jurisdiction; 

 
(2) been suspended, debarred or otherwise disqualified from entering into any contract 

with any governmental agency; 
 

(3) had any business license or professional license suspended or revoked; 
 

(4) had any sanction or finding of fact imposed as a result of a judicial or administrative 

proceeding related to fraud, extortion, bribery, bid rigging, embezzlement, 

misrepresentation or anti-trust; and 
 

(5) been, and is not currently, the subject of a criminal investigation by any federal, 

state or local prosecuting or investigative agency and/or civil anti-trust investigation 
by any federal, state or local prosecuting or investigative agency. 

 
If Contractor cannot so certify to the above, then it must submit along with its bid, proposal or 
contract a written explanation of why such certification cannot be made and the Commonwealth 

will determine whether a contract may be entered into with the Contractor. The Contractor’s 

obligation pursuant to this certification is ongoing from and after the effective date of the contract 
through the termination date thereof. Accordingly, the Contractor shall have an obligation to 

immediately notify the Commonwealth in writing if at any time during the term of the contract if 
becomes aware of any event which would cause the Contractor’s certification or explanation to 

change. Contractor acknowledges that the Commonwealth may, in its sole discretion, terminate 

the contract for cause if it learns that any of the certifications made herein are currently false due 
to intervening factual circumstances or were false or should have been known to be false when 

entering into the contract. 
 

Exhibit       

Reagle, Ed
Text Box
C



Enclosure 1 to Management Directive 215.8 Amended Page 3 of 3  

f. Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Lobbying Disclosure Act (65 Pa.C.S. 

§13A01 et seq.) regardless of the method of award. If this contract was awarded on a 

Non-bid Basis, Contractor must also comply with the requirements of the Section 1641 of 
the Pennsylvania Election Code (25 P.S. §3260a). 

 
g. When Contractor has reason to believe that any breach of ethical standards as set forth in 

law, the Governor’s Code of Conduct, or these Contractor Integrity Provisions has occurred 

or may occur, including but not limited to contact by a Commonwealth officer or employee 
which, if acted upon, would violate such ethical standards, Contractor shall immediately 

notify the Commonwealth contracting officer or the Office of the State Inspector General in 

writing. 
 

h. Contractor, by submission of its bid or proposal and/or execution of this contract and by 
the submission of any bills, invoices or requests for payment pursuant to the contract, 

certifies and represents that it has not violated any of these Contractor Integrity Provisions 
in connection with the submission of the bid or proposal, during any contract negotiations 

or during the term of the contract, to include any extensions thereof. Contractor shall 

immediately notify the Commonwealth in writing of any actions for occurrences that would 
result in a violation of these Contractor Integrity Provisions. Contractor agrees to 

reimburse the Commonwealth for the reasonable costs of investigation incurred by the 
Office of the State Inspector General for investigations of the Contractor’s compliance with 

the terms of this or any other agreement between the Contractor and the Commonwealth 

that results in the suspension or debarment of the Contractor. Contractor shall not be 
responsible for investigative costs for investigations that do not result in the Contractor’s 

suspension or debarment. 
 

i. Contractor shall cooperate with the Office of the State Inspector General in its 

investigation of any alleged Commonwealth agency or employee breach of ethical 
standards and any alleged Contractor non-compliance with these Contractor Integrity 

Provisions. Contractor agrees to make identified Contractor employees available for 
interviews at reasonable times and places. Contractor, upon the inquiry or request of an 

Inspector General, shall provide, or if appropriate, make promptly available for inspection 

or copying, any information of any type or form deemed relevant by the Office of the State 
Inspector General to Contractor's integrity and compliance with these provisions. Such 

information may include, but shall not be limited to, Contractor's business or financial 
records, documents or files of any type or form that refer to or concern this contract. 

Contractor shall incorporate this paragraph in any agreement, contract or subcontract it 

enters into in the course of the performance of this contract/agreement solely for the 
purpose of obtaining subcontractor compliance with this provision. The incorporation of 

this provision in a subcontract shall not create privity of contract between the 
Commonwealth and any such subcontractor, and no third party beneficiaries shall be 

created thereby. 
 

j. For violation of any of these Contractor Integrity Provisions, the Commonwealth may 
terminate this and any other contract with Contractor, claim liquidated damages in an 

amount equal to the value of anything received in breach of these Provisions, claim 
damages for all additional costs and expenses incurred in obtaining another contractor to 

complete performance under this contract, and debar and suspend Contractor from doing 

business with the Commonwealth. These rights and remedies are cumulative, and the use 
or non-use of any one shall not preclude the use of all or any other. These rights and 

remedies are in addition to those the Commonwealth may have under law, statute, 
regulation, or otherwise. 

 
 
 

Exhibit       

Reagle, Ed
Text Box
C



1 of 1 

Contractor Responsibility Provisions 

(December 2020) 

For the purpose of these provisions, the term Contractor is defined as any person, including, but not 

limited to, a bidder, offeror, loan recipient, grantee or lessor, who has furnished or performed or seeks 

to furnish or perform, goods, supplies, services, leased space, construction or other activity, under a 

contract, grant, lease, purchase order or reimbursement agreement with the Commonwealth of 

Pennsylvania (Commonwealth).  The term Contractor includes a permittee, licensee, or any agency, 

political subdivision, instrumentality, public authority, or other public entity in the Commonwealth.  

1.  The Contractor certifies, in writing, for itself and its subcontractors required to be disclosed or 

approved by the Commonwealth, that as of the date of its execution of this Bid/Contract, that neither 

the Contractor, nor any such subcontractors, are under suspension or debarment by the Commonwealth 

or any governmental entity, instrumentality, or authority and, if the Contractor cannot so certify, then it 

agrees to submit, along with its Bid/Contract, a written explanation of why such certification cannot be 

made.  

2.  The Contractor also certifies, in writing, that as of the date of its execution of this Bid/Contract it has 

no tax liabilities or other Commonwealth obligations, or has filed a timely administrative or judicial 

appeal if such liabilities or obligations exist, or is subject to a duly approved deferred payment plan if 

such liabilities exist.  

3.  The Contractor's obligations pursuant to these provisions are ongoing from and after the effective 

date of the Contract through the termination date thereof. Accordingly, the Contractor shall have an 

obligation to inform the Commonwealth if, at any time during the term of the Contract, it becomes 

delinquent in the payment of taxes, or other Commonwealth obligations, or if it or, to the best 

knowledge of the Contractor, any of its subcontractors are suspended or debarred by the 

Commonwealth, the federal government, or any other state or governmental entity.  Such notification 

shall be made within 15 days of the date of suspension or debarment.  

4.  The failure of the Contractor to notify the Commonwealth of its suspension or debarment by the 

Commonwealth, any other state, or the federal government shall constitute an event of default of the 

Contract with the Commonwealth.  

5.  The Contractor agrees to reimburse the Commonwealth for the reasonable costs of investigation 

incurred by the Office of State Inspector General for investigations of the Contractor's compliance with 

the terms of this or any other agreement between the Contractor and the Commonwealth that results in 

the suspension or debarment of the contractor. Such costs shall include, but shall not be limited to, 

salaries of investigators, including overtime; travel and lodging expenses; and expert witness and 

documentary fees.  The Contractor shall not be responsible for investigative costs for investigations that 

do not result in the Contractor's suspension or debarment.  

6.  The Contractor may search the current list of suspended and debarred Commonwealth contractors 

by visiting the eMarketplace website at http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us and clicking the 

Debarment List tab.  

Exhibit       

http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/
Reagle, Ed
Text Box
D



Enclosure 1 to Management Directive 215.16 Amended Page 1 of 2  

NONDISCRIMINATION/SEXUAL HARASSMENT CLAUSE [Contracts] 

 
The Contractor agrees: 

 

1. In the hiring of any employee(s) for the manufacture of supplies, performance of 
work, or any other activity required under the contract or any subcontract, the 

Contractor, each subcontractor, or any person acting on behalf of the Contractor 

or subcontractor shall not discriminate by reason of race, gender, creed, color, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, or in violation of the 

Pennsylvania Human Relations Act (PHRA) and applicable federal laws, against any 
citizen of this commonwealth who is qualified and available to perform the work to 

which the employment relates. 

 
2. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor nor any person on their behalf shall 

in any manner discriminate by reason of race, gender, creed, color, sexual 

orientation, gender identity or expression, or in violation of the PHRA and 
applicable federal laws, against or intimidate any employee involved in the 

manufacture of supplies, the performance of work, or any other activity required 

under the contract. 

 

3. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor nor any person on their behalf shall 

in any manner discriminate by reason of race, gender, creed, color, sexual 
orientation, gender identity or expression, or in violation of the PHRA and 

applicable federal laws, in the provision of services under the contract. 

 
4. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor nor any person on their behalf shall 

in any manner discriminate against employees by reason of participation in or 

decision to refrain from participating in labor activities protected under the Public 
Employee Relations Act, Pennsylvania Labor Relations Act or National Labor 

Relations Act, as applicable and to the extent determined by entities charged with 

such Acts’ enforcement, and shall comply with any provision of law establishing 
organizations as employees’ exclusive representatives. 

 

5. The Contractor and each subcontractor shall establish and maintain a written 
nondiscrimination and sexual harassment policy and shall inform their employees 

in writing of the policy. The policy must contain a provision that sexual harassment 
will not be tolerated and employees who practice it will be disciplined. Posting this 

Nondiscrimination/Sexual Harassment Clause conspicuously in easily-accessible 

and well-lighted places customarily frequented by employees and at or near where 
the contracted services are performed shall satisfy this requirement for employees 

with an established work site. 

 
6. The Contractor and each subcontractor shall not discriminate by reason of race, 

gender, creed, color, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, or in 
violation of PHRA and applicable federal laws, against any subcontractor or supplier 

who is qualified to perform the work to which the contract relates. 

 

7. The Contractor and each subcontractor represents that it is presently in compliance 
with and will maintain compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 

regulations and policies relating to nondiscrimination and sexual harassment. The 
Contractor and each subcontractor further represents that it has filed a Standard 

Form 100 Employer Information Report (“EEO-1”) with the U.S. Equal Employment 

 

Exhibit    

Reagle, Ed
Text Box
E



Enclosure 1 to Management Directive 215.16 Amended Page 2 of 2  

Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”) and shall file an annual EEO-1 report with the EEOC 
as required for employers’ subject to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 

amended, that have 100 or more employees and employers that have federal 
government contracts or first-tier subcontracts and have 50 or more employees. The 

Contractor and each subcontractor shall, upon request and within the time periods 

requested by the commonwealth, furnish all necessary employment documents and 
records, including EEO-1 reports, and permit access to their books, records, and 

accounts by the contracting agency and the Bureau of Diversity, Inclusion and Small 

Business Opportunities for purpose of ascertaining compliance with provisions of this 
Nondiscrimination/Sexual Harassment Clause. 

 
8. The Contractor shall include the provisions of this Nondiscrimination/Sexual 

Harassment Clause in every subcontract so that those provisions applicable to 

subcontractors will be binding upon each subcontractor. 

 
9. The Contractor’s and each subcontractor’s obligations pursuant to these provisions are 

ongoing from and after the effective date of the contract through the termination date 

thereof. Accordingly, the Contractor and each subcontractor shall have an obligation to 

inform the commonwealth if, at any time during the term of the contract, it becomes 
aware of any actions or occurrences that would result in violation of these provisions. 

 
10. The commonwealth may cancel or terminate the contract and all money due or to 

become due under the contract may be forfeited for a violation of the terms and 

conditions of this Nondiscrimination/Sexual Harassment Clause. In addition, the 

agency may proceed with debarment or suspension and may place the Contractor in 
the Contractor Responsibility File. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Exhibit     

Reagle, Ed
Text Box
E



October 14, 2011 

Enclosure 1 to Management Directive 215.12 Amended     Page 1 of 1 

PROVISIONS CONCERNING THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT  
 

For the purpose of these provisions, the term contractor is defined as any person, including, 
but not limited to, a bidder, offeror, supplier, or grantee, who will furnish or perform or seeks 

to furnish or perform, goods, supplies, services, construction or other activity, under a 

purchase order, contract, or grant with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Commonwealth).  

 

During the term of this agreement, the contractor agrees as follows:  

 

1. Pursuant to federal regulations promulgated under the authority of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, 28 C. F. R. § 35.101 et seq., the contractor understands and agrees that 

no individual with a disability shall, on the basis of the disability, be excluded from 

participation in this agreement or from activities provided for under this agreement. As a 
condition of accepting and executing this agreement, the contractor agrees to comply with 

the "General Prohibitions Against Discrimination," 28 C. F. R. § 35.130, and all other 

regulations promulgated under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act which are 
applicable to the benefits, services, programs, and activities provided by the 

Commonwealth through contracts with outside contractors.  

 

2. The contractor shall be responsible for and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the 

Commonwealth from all losses, damages, expenses, claims, demands, suits, and actions 
brought by any party against the Commonwealth as a result of the contractor's failure to 

comply with the provisions of paragraph 1.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT       

Reagle, Ed
Text Box
F



Revised February 1, 2010               

Contract Provisions – Right to Know Law 
 

a.  The Pennsylvania Right-to-Know Law, 65 P.S. §§ 67.101-3104, (“RTKL”) applies to this 
Contract.  For the purpose of these provisions, the term “the Commonwealth” shall refer to the 
contracting Commonwealth agency. 
 
b.  If the Commonwealth needs the Contractor’s assistance in any matter arising out of the RTKL 
related to this Contract, it shall notify the Contractor using the legal contact information provided 
in this Contract.  The Contractor, at any time, may designate a different contact for such purpose 
upon reasonable prior written notice to the Commonwealth. 
 
c.  Upon written notification from the Commonwealth that it requires the  Contractor’s assistance 
in responding to a request under the RTKL for information related to this Contract that may be in 
the Contractor’s possession, constituting, or alleged to constitute, a public record in accordance 
with the RTKL (“Requested Information”), the Contractor shall: 
 

1.  Provide the Commonwealth, within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of 
written notification, access to, and copies of, any document or information in the 
Contractor’s possession arising out of this Contract that the Commonwealth 
reasonably believes is Requested Information and may be a public record under 
the RTKL; and  

 
2.  Provide such other assistance as the Commonwealth may reasonably request, 
in order to comply with the RTKL with respect to this Contract. 

 
d.  If the Contractor considers the Requested Information to include a request for a Trade Secret 
or Confidential Proprietary Information, as those terms are defined by the RTKL, or other 
information that the Contractor considers exempt from production under the RTKL, the 
Contractor must notify the Commonwealth and provide, within seven (7) calendar days of 
receiving the written notification, a written statement signed by a representative of the Contractor 
explaining why the requested material is exempt from public disclosure under the RTKL. 
 
e.  The Commonwealth will rely upon the written statement from the Contractor in denying a 
RTKL request for the Requested Information unless the Commonwealth determines that the 
Requested Information is clearly not protected from disclosure under the RTKL.  Should the 
Commonwealth determine that the Requested Information is clearly not exempt from disclosure, 
the Contractor shall provide the Requested Information within five (5) business days of receipt of 
written notification of the Commonwealth’s determination. 
 
f.  If the Contractor fails to provide the Requested Information within the time period required by 
these provisions, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold the Commonwealth harmless for any 
damages, penalties, costs, detriment or harm that the Commonwealth may incur as a result of the 
Contractor’s failure, including any statutory damages assessed against the Commonwealth. 
 
 

EXHIBIT Click here to enter text. 

Reagle, Ed
Text Box
G



Revised February 1, 2010               

g.  The Commonwealth will reimburse the Contractor for any costs associated with complying 
with these provisions only to the extent allowed under the fee schedule established by the Office 
of Open Records or as otherwise provided by the RTKL if the fee schedule is inapplicable. 
 
h.  The Contractor may file a legal challenge to any Commonwealth decision to release a record 
to the public with the Office of Open Records, or in the Pennsylvania Courts, however, the 
Contractor shall indemnify the Commonwealth for any legal expenses incurred by the 
Commonwealth as a result of such a challenge and shall hold the Commonwealth harmless for 
any damages, penalties, costs, detriment or harm that the Commonwealth may incur as a result of 
the Contractor’s failure, including any statutory damages assessed against the Commonwealth, 
regardless of the outcome of such legal challenge.  As between the parties, the Contractor agrees 
to waive all rights or remedies that may be available to it as a result of the Commonwealth’s 
disclosure of Requested Information pursuant to the RTKL.  
 
i.  The Contractor’s duties relating to the RTKL are continuing duties that survive the expiration 
of this Contract and shall continue as long as the Contractor has Requested Information in its 
possession. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT     

 

Reagle, Ed
Text Box
G



 

 

           LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

 
             100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

          Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

         Police:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219 

 

 
 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA 

Resolution No. 2023-15 

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION TO APPOINT THE LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

REPRESENTATIVE TO THE MONTGOMERY COUNTY  

TAX COLLECTION COMMITTEE  

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township that we 

hereby appoint the following individuals to serve as representatives to the Montgomery 

County Tax Collection Committee as required by Act 32: 

 

• Delegate – Finance Director 

• First Alternate Voting Delegate – Township Manager 

 

ADOPTED and RESOLVED this 2nd day of February 2023. 
 

 

 

            LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP  

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

        Chair 

         

Attest: 

   

 
_________________________      

Secretary               

 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

Police:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Board of Supervisors 

 

FROM: E.J. Mentry, Township Manager 

 

SUBJECT: 2/2/23 BOS Meeting – Agenda Item 4.g. – Manager’s Conference Approvals 

 

DATE:  January 27, 2023 

 

 

For the upcoming February 2, 2023 Board of Supervisors meeting, I am requesting BOS 

approval to attend the 2023 Public Employer Labor Relations Advisory Service (PELRAS) and 

Association for Pennsylvania Municipal Management (APMM) Conferences. Although these 

memberships and trainings are provided for in my Employment Agreement, the language 

dictates that BOS pre-approval is required for conference attendance. The PELRAS Conference 

is led by labor attorneys who work exclusively with Pennsylvania municipalities and focuses on 

employee relations, contract negotiations, and all human resources topics. Kristin will also be 

attending the conference. APMM is the Pennsylvania state affiliate of ICMA (International 

City/County Management Association). The APMM Conference is the only state conference 

dedicated solely to municipal managers and assistant managers. I have attended both of these 

conferences annually since I’ve been a manager and find them incredibly valuable. My 

employment agreement also provides for potential attendance at the annual ICMA Conference, 

which is in September, but I am not seeking approval at this time for that conference. I will 

reevaluate later in the year and may come back to the BOS with a request for approval.  

 

The 2023 Trainings and Conference budget is $45,000 (line item 01-401-460), which anticipated 

my attendance at both of these conferences. An estimate cost breakdown with conference details 

for both conferences is below: 

 

 PELRAS APMM 

Dates March 15-17, 2023 May 22-24, 2023 

Location State College, PA Pittsburgh, PA 

Conference Registration $225.00 $450.00* 

Hotel (3 nights) $333.00 $680.60 

Parking N/A $60.00 

Meals/Misc** $100.00 $100.00 

TOTAL*** $658.00 $1,290.60 

 

*APMM Conference registration fee has not yet been announced. Fee was $425 last year, so 

assumed an increase for 2023. 

**Most meals are included with conference registration. 

***Total does not include gas and toll costs. 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

Police:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Board of Supervisors 

 

FROM: E.J. Mentry, Township Manager 

 

SUBJECT: 2023 Board of Supervisors Goals and Strategy (2/2/23 Agenda Item #5.f.) 

 

DATE:  January 27, 2023 

 

 

As discussed briefly at the end of the Reorganization Meeting, the BOS would like to resume 

discussions of strategic/action planning and setting goals and priorities for 2023. The upcoming 

1/19/23 BOS agenda includes an item to begin these conversations. To assist in guiding the 

discussion next week and throughout the year, I’ve compiled a very general list of major topics 

based on feedback and past discussions with the BOS. These items are not in any particular order 

based on priority: 

 

1. Comprehensive Plan Action/Implementation Planning 

a. Upon adoption of the Comprehensive Plan, which is anticipated for either 

February or March 2023, we will need to prioritize the implementation goals and 

craft an action plan. 

2. Grant Planning 

a. In conjunction with the above item, the BOS would like to formulate a prioritized 

plan for potential grant-funded projects. 

3. Role of Township Boards/Commissions/Committees/Councils 

a. Discussion on ways to empower Township boards to be more proactive while 

simultaneously improving communication and collaboration with the BOS. 

4. Business Development 

a. Re-establish the Business Development Committee, its role/function, and plans 

and priorities for 2023 and beyond. 

5. Township Complex/Building Planning 

a. Continue discussions and begin formal planning for renovations and 

improvements to the Township Building and overall campus plan. 

 

For the 2/2 BOS Meeting, we’d like to continue the conversation with a brief discussion on the 

Township Complex/Building project, to ensure that everyone has an understanding of the scope 

of the feasibility study, which is likely to be the first step in the process. 

 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 


	2a BOS Draft Minutes 1-19-23
	2b Woodland Tract Escrow Release
	3 Comp Plan Adoption BOS Memo  DRAFT 
	3 Comp Plan LGallagher email
	3 Comp Plan Samantha Grant
	3 Comp Plan SEPTA
	4a Resolution 2023-09  - Providence Greene HOA amendment (01567745-3xC305A)
	4b DRAFT Approval Resolution - Audubon Square 5 (01573937xC305A)
	4c DRAFT Approval Resolution - BrightView (01573989xC305A)
	4d Land Development waiver resolution - Select Pizza (01573990xC305A)
	5a Bid Award Recommendation 1-27-2023
	5a Lower Providence APS
	5b Resolution 2023-14 PennDOT Maintenance Agreement
	5b SR 4004 MTF Stormwater Maintenance Agreement
	Sheets and Views
	2 PennDot2
	3 PennDot3
	5 E&SC SEQUENCE
	6 PennDot5
	7 LAY01
	8 LAY02
	9 LAY03
	10 LAY04
	11 LAY05
	12 RG1-DET
	13 RG2-DET
	14 RG3-DET
	15 RG2-DET
	16 ADD-DET1
	17 ADD-DET
	18 SUMP-INLT

	NONDISCRIMINATION/SEXUAL HARASSMENT CLAUSE [Contracts]

	5c Resolution 2023-15 - Appointment to Montco Tax Committee
	5e Manager Conference Request Memo
	5f BOS Goals and Strategy 2023 memo



